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 تَسْلِيماً.ِوَسَلَمَِِ,الطاَهِريِنِِسَيِ دِنََِمَُُمَدٍِوَِآلِهِِِعَلىِاللَُِِّوَِصَلَىِِ,الْعالَمِينِرَبِِِالْْمَْدُِللَِِِّالرحَِيمِِِالرَحْْنِِِاللَِِِّبِسْمِِ
In the Name of Allah-azwj the Beneficent, the Merciful. The Praise is for Allah-azwj Lord-azwj of the Worlds, and Blessing be upon our Chief 

Muhammad-saww and his-saww Purified Progeny-asws, and greetings with abundant greetings. 

لِْفَ رَجَهُمِْوَالْعَنِْأعَْدَائَ هُمِْاَجَْْعِيْنِ  الَلَهُمَِصَلِ ِعَلىِمَُُمَدٍِوَآلِِمَُُمَدٍِوَعَجِ 

Sanctity and Protection of Holy Sites 

Summary: 

The enemies of Allah-azwj and His-azwj ‘Walis’ (Custodians) have always been trying to eradicate 

and falsify the ‘Traces of Truth,’1 including the Holy sites and Shrines. Out of love for Allah-azwj 

and His-azwj Walis, one sometimes feels sad and frustrated about not doing enough, when 

Sunni extremists threaten to deface, damage, or even demolish a holy Shrine. In this short 

article, we review some traditions of Ahl Al-Bayt-asws, to learn about their-asws conduct upon 

facing the enemies of Allah-azwj, who were intent on disrespecting the sanctity or eradicating 

the signs of a holy site, i.e., the Kabah or the Holy graves of Ahl Al-Bayt-asws.   

Briefly, we find that the grandfather of Prophet-saww, Abd Al-Mutlib-asws only demanded the 

release of his-asws captured camel from the king of Ethiopia, leaving the defence of the Holy 

Kabah to Allah-azwj. The locations of the graves of the daughter of the Prophet-saww and Amir 

Al-Momineen-asws were hidden from general Muslims to protect their sanctity from the 

enemies of Ahl Al-Bayt-asws.  

Imam Ali-asws Ibn Hussain-asws organised the burial of the Martyred of Karbala, along with their 

severed Heads, through Bani Asad and it is not found in the literature that the 4th Imam-asws 

ever instructed his-asws followers to protect the holy graves at Karbala. Through Ahadith, the 

Masomeen-asws, have encouraged their-asws devotees to visit the Holy graves for our benefit 

(acceptance of prayers and securing rewards of both worlds).2 

When Al-Hajjaj-la Ibn Yusuf-la destroyed the Holy Kabah by catapulting stones at it in the event 

of Harra, and when an army of Yazeed-la plundered the sanctity of Medinah, Imam Ali-asws Ibn 

Hussain-asws adopted solitude in both cases, i.e., moved away from the fighting fractions along 

with close family members and adherents.  

During the time of the 10th Imam-asws, Al-Mutawakkil-la sent Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj to exhume the 

holy grave of Imam Hussain-asws, and to plough over it so that all traces of the sacred grave 

were eradicated.  

مِنَِالثِ قَاتِِ ِأتََِِِوَِرَوَىِجَْاَعَةٌِ عَلَيْهِِمِنَِالْعَلْقَمِيِ  كَِرْبَلََءَِأنَهَُِلَمَاِأمََرَِالْمُتَوكَِ لُِبَِِرْثِِقَبِِْْالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِأَنِْيُُْرَىِالْمَاءُِ ىِزَيْدٌِالْمَجْنُونُِوَِبُُلُْولٌِالْمَجْنُونُِإِلََ
 فِِالْْوََاءِِفَ نَظرَاَِإِلََِالْقَبِِْْوَِإِذَاِهُوَِمُعَلَقٌِبِِلْقُدْرَةِِ

 
1 Quran 61:8 - They are intending to extinguish the Light of Allah with their mouths but Allah will Complete 
His Light, and even if the disbelievers abhor it. 
2 See for example, Kamil Al-Ziyarah - The Reward for those who perform the Ziarat of Imam Hussain-asws during 
the Times of Fear. 
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And it is reported by a group from the trusted ones,  

‘When Al-Mutawakkil-la ordered farming upon the grave of Al-Husayn-asws and flowed the 
water upon it from (river) Al-qamah, Zayd ‘the insane’ and Bahlool ‘the insane’ came to 
Karbala. They looked at the grave, and there, it was suspended in the air by the Power. 

كَِرهَِِالْكافِرُونَِِ-يرُيِدُونَِليُِطْفِؤُاِنوُرَِاللَِِّبِِفَْواهِهِمِِْفَ قَالَِزَيْدٌِ  وَِيََْبََِالَلُِّإِلََِّأَنِْيتُِمَِنوُرَهُِوَِلَوْ

Zayd said, ‘They are intending to extinguish the Light of Allah with their mouths, and Allah 
Refused except that He would Complete His Light, and even though the Kafirs dislike it 
[9:32].’ 

ِِ.لََِذَلِكَِآمَنَِبِِللَِِّوَِحَلَِالْبَقَرَِفأَُخْبَِْالْمُتَوكَِ لَِفأََمَرَِبِقَتْلِهِِوَِذَلِكَِأَنَِالْْرَاَثَِحَرَثَِسَبْعَِعَشْرَةَِمَرةًَِوَِالْقَبُِْْيَ رْجِعُِإِلََِحَالهِِِفَ لَمَاِنَظرََِالْْرَاَثُِإِِ

And that is because the farmer had farmed for twenty years and the grave kept returning to 
its (former) state. When the farmer looked at that, he believed in Allah-azwj, and released the 
cows and informed Al-Mutawakkil-la. He ordered with killing him.’’3 

Finally, one may ask, why did Allah-azwj Protect the Kabah when King Abraha attacked it with 

the elephants and did not Save the Holy Lands from the armies of Yazeed-la and Al-Hajjaj-la?  

Well, it’s the ‘Mashiya’ (Wish) and Wisdom of Allah-azwj as sometimes Allah-azwj Gives Respite 

but, at other occasions, His-azwj Retribution was Harsh and Swift.  The era we are living in has 

a very long respite for the enemies of Allah-azwj, but it will come to an end as the Promise of 

Allah-azwj is True.  

كَِرهَِِالْكَافِرُونَِ}  {8يرُيِدُونَِليُِطْفِئُواِنوُرَِاللَِِّبِِفَْ وَاهِهِمِْوَالَلُِّمُتِمُِّنوُرهِِِوَلَوْ

They are intending to extinguish the Light of Allah with their mouths but Allah 
will Complete His Light, and even if the Kafirs abhor it [61:8] 

ِبْنِِأَسْبَاطٍِعَنِِالُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِالَْْسَنِِقاَلَِ ِتَ ركَْتُِابْنَِقِيَامَاِِكش،ِرجالِالكشيِخَلَفُِبْنُِحَْاَرٍِعَنِْسَهْلِِبْنِِزيََِدٍِعَنِْعَلِيِ  :ِقُ لْتُِلَِِبِِالَْْسَنِِالر ضَِاِعِإِنّ ِ
 تُِمَاِأعَْجَبَِمَاِأَسَْْعُِمِنْكَِجُعِلْتُِفِدَاكَِمِنِْأعَْدَىِخَلْقِِاللَِِّلَكَِقاَلَِذَلِكَِشَرٌِّلَهُِقُ لِْ

Khalaf Bin Hamar, from Sahl Bin Ziyad, from Ali Bin Asbat, from Al Husayn Ibn Al Hassan who said,  

‘I said to Abu Al-Hassan Al-Reza-asws (8th successor of the Prophet) ‘I left Ibn Qayama as one of 
the most inimical of the creatures of Allah-azwj to you-asws.’ He (Al-Reza-asws) said: ‘That is evil 
for him?’ I said, ‘How strange what I hear from you-asws (without any defence strategy) may I 
be sacrificed for you-asws?’  

كَِانَِفِِجِوَارِِاللَِِّعَزَِوَِجَلَِفِِالْقُرْبِِمِنْهُِفأََمَرَهُِفأََبََِوَِتَ عَِ كَِانَِمِنَِالْكَافِريِنَِفأََمْلَىِالَلُِّلَهُِوَِاللَِِّمَاِعَذَبَِالَلُِّبِشَيِْقاَلَِأعَْجَبُِمِنِْذَلِكَِإِبلِْيسُ ءٍِزَزَِوَ
مْلََءِِوَِاللَِِّيََِحُسَيْنُِمَاِعَذَبَُمُُِالَلُِّبِشَيِْ مْلََءِ.أَشَدَِمِنَِالِْْ  ءٍِأَشَدَِمِنَِالِْْ

 
3 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 50 H 11 c 
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He-asws said: ‘Stranger than that is Iblees-la (Satan). He-la was in the vicinity of Allah-azwj Might 
and Majestic, in the nearness from Him-azwj, so He-azwj Commanded him-la, but he-la refused 
and was arrogant, and he-la was from the Kafirs, and Allah-azwj Respited for him-la. By Allah-azwj! 
Allah-azwj does not Punish with something severer than the respite. By Allah-azwj, O Husayn! 
Allah-azwj does not Punish them with anything severer than the respite.’’4 

Introduction: 

First, we need to see who protects us from dangers, and where one must find shelter upon 

coming across a threat. 

 فاَلْوَلََّيةَُِهِيَِحِفْظُِالثُّغُورِِوَِتَدْبِيُرِالِْمُُورِِوَِتَ عْدِيدُِالَِْيََمِِوَِالشُّهُورِِِ

(Amir Al-Momineen-asws says in Hadith e Tariq) Thus, ‘Wilayah’ is nothing other than 
safeguarding people from danger and disaster and managing their affairs, (even down to) 
demarcating the days and months (an extract).5 

كُِلُِّقَ وْمٍِإِلََِمَأْمَنِِ مِنَِالسَمَاءِِفَزعَِ كَِانَِفَ زْعَةٌِ  ِ.هِمِْوَِفَزعِْنَاِإِلََِنبَِيِ نَاِوَِفَزعِْتُمِْإلِيَْنَاِِوَِقاَلَِمَاِتَ بْغُونَِوَِمَاِترُيِدُونَِأمََاِإِنََّاَِلَوْ

And he-asws (the 5th Imam-asws, in a lengthy Hadith) said: What do you seek and desire? If 

there were a terror from the sky (above, i.e., a missile), every person would flee to their 

place of safety, and we-asws will be secured with our Prophet-saww, and you will be seeking 

safety with us-asws’ (an extract).6 

مِنَِالنِ دَاءِِوَِالَِْرْضُِمِنَِالَْْسْفِِبِِلْْيَْشِِ  قاَلَِأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِاسْكُنِْمَاِسَكَنَتِِالسَمَاءُِ

In another Hadith, Abu Abd Allah-asws said: Remain inactive for as long as the sky is still from 

the call and the earth is still from the collapse of an army (who will be swallowed by the 

earth when attacking the 12th Imam-ajfj upon his-ajfj reappearance - an extract).7 

What Shias Should Do When Al-Sufyani Rises: 

ِقاَلَِقُ لْتُِلَِِبِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّ قاَلَِتُ غَيِ بُِالر جَِالُِوَِبِِِسْنَادِهِِعَنِْإِسْْاَعِيلَِبْنِِمِهْراَنَِعَنِِابْنِِعَمِيرةََِعَنِِالَْْضْرَمِيِ  كَِيْفَِنَصْنَعُِإِذَاِخَرجََِالسُّفْيَانُِّّ ِعَلَيْهِِالسَلََمُ
كُِوَرَِالشَامِِفاَنْفِرُواِإِلََِصَاحِبِكُمِْوُجُوهَهَاِمِنْهُِوَِليَْسَِعَلَىِالِْ ِ عِيَالِِبَِْسٌِفإَِذَاِظَهَرَِعَلَىِالَِْكْوَارِِالْْمَْسِِيَ عْنِِ

From reference (chain of narrators), they have narrated from Ismail ibn Mehran, who from Ibn Yumara, who 
from Hazmi, who has said: 

Abu Abd Allah-asws was asked: What shall we do when al-Sufyani rises? 

 
4 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 5, The book of Justice, Ch 8 H 3 
5 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 25, Ch 4 H 39,   177 :ن عليه السلام، ص ي أسرار أمير المؤمنير

ن فن  مشارق أنوار اليقير
6 Al-Kafi, Vol. 8,  H 14847 
7 Bihar Al-Anwaar, vol. 52, pg. 189                            189 : بحارالأنوار ج : 52 ص 
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Imam-asws replied: All men among you should go undercover, their dependents will be 
protected (by the Imam-asws).  And when he (Sufyani) succeeds in capturing all five areas of 

Sham, then the men (Shias) should go there (to serve the) ‘ِْإِلََِصَاحِبِكُم’ Imam-e-Zaman-ajfj8. 

With this background, we present some of those events which took place in the presence of 
the holy family of Prophet-saww, where enemies of Allah-azwj, tried to demolish or deface the 
sacred sites. 

King of Ethiopia came to Demolish Kabah and Conduct of Abd Al-Mutlib-asws: 

بدِِمُمدِبنِيعقوب:ِعنِعدةِمنِأصحابنا،ِعنِأحْدِبنِمُمدِبنِعيسى،ِعنِابنِأبِِعمير،ِعنِمُمدِبنِحْران،ِعنِأبِنِبنِتغلب،ِقال:ِقالِأبوِع
 اللهِ)عليهِالسلَم(:ِ»لماِأتىِصاحبِالْبشةِبِلْيلِوِمعهمِالفيلِليهدمِالبيتِمرواِبِبلِلعبدِالمطلبِفساقوها،ِ

Muhammad Bin Yaqoub, from a number of our companions, from Ahmad Bin Muhammad Bin Isa, from Ibn Abu 
Umeyr, from Muhammad Bin Hamraan, from Aban Bin Taghlub who said,  

‘Abu Abdullah-asws said: ‘When the Ethiopian cavalry set out, and they had elephants with 
them, for the destruction of the House (Kabah) they passed by the camels of Abdul 
Muttalib-asws, so they ushered the camels away with them.   

 فبلغِذلكِعبدِالمطلب،ِفأتىِصاحبِالْبشة،ِفدخلِالآذن،ِفقال:ِهذاِعبدِالمطلبِبنِهاشم،ِقال:ِوِماِيشاء؟ِ

‘That reached Abdul Muttalib-asws, so he-asws came to the Ethiopians. He-asws came up and (the 
guard) called out, ‘This is Abdul Muttalib-asws Bin Hashim-asws!’ He (Abraha the king) said, ‘And 
what does he want?’  

وِهوِِِقالِالترجْان:ِجاءِفِِإبلِلهِساقوهاِيسألكِردها،ِفقالِملكِالْبشةِلِصحابه:ِهذاِرئيسِقومِوِزعيمهم!ِجئتِإلَِبيتهِالذيِيعبدهِلِهدمه
 يسألنِِإطلَقِإبله!ِأماِلوِسألنِِالْمساكِعنِهدمهِلفعلت،ِردواِعليهِإبله.

‘The interpreter said, ‘He-asws has come regarding his-asws camels which were ushered away. 
He-asws is asking for their return.’ So, the Ethiopian king said to his companions, ‘This is the 
Chief of a people and their leader! We come to the House, which he worships to destroy it, 
and he-asws is asking me to return his camels! But, had he-asws asked me to withhold the 
destruction, I would have done it. Return his-asws camels to him-asws.’ 

عبدِالمطلبِِِِفقالِعبدِالمطلبِلترجْانه:ِماِقالِالملك؟ِفأخبْه،ِفقالِعبدِالمطلب:ِأنَِربِالْبل،ِوِلْذاِالبيتِربِيمنعه،ِفردتِعليهِإبله،ِوِانصرف
 نحوِمنزله،ِ

Abdul Muttalib-asws to his interpreter: ‘What did the king say?’ So he informed him-asws, and 
Abdul Muttalib-asws said: ‘I-asws am the lord of the camels, and for this House is a Lord -azwj to 
prevent it (the attack).’ So he returned the camels back to him-asws, and Abdul Muttalib-asws 
left to go towards his-asws house (an extract).9 See the complete Hadith in Appendix I. 

 
 بحارالأنوار     52     272    باب 25 8
ي 1: 372/ 25) 9

 (الكافن



Sanctity and Protection of Holy Sites     www.hubeali.com 

Page 8 of 36 

2nd Muslim Caliph wanted to Exhume the Holy grave of Al-Zahra-asws, so Amir-
ul-Momineen-asws faced up to him 

رِإلَِأبِِبكرِفلماِأصبحِالناسِأقبلِأبوِبكرِوعمرِوالناسِيريدونِالصلَةِعلىِفاطمةِعليهاِالسلَم.ِفقالِالمقداد:ِقدِدفناِفاطمةِالبارحة.ِفالتفتِعم
كمِالقديمِلناِأبدا.ِإنِِحسدِِِ-يَِبنِِهاشمِِِِ-فقال:ِألمِأقلِلكِإنَّمِسيفعلون؟ِقالِالعباس:ِإنَّاِأوصتِأنِلَِّتصلياِعليها.ِفقالِعمر:ِواللهِلَِّتتركونِِ

 هذهِالضغائنِالتيِفِِصدوركمِلنِتذهبِواللهِلقدِهممتِأنِأنبشهاِفأصليِعليهاِ.

When it was the morning, Abu Bakr and Umar came up with the people wanting to Pray over 
(Syeda) Fatima-asws. Al-Miqdad-ra said, ‘(Syeda) Fatima-asws was buried last night.’ Umar turned 
towards Abu Bakr, ‘Did I not say to you that they will be belittling you?’ Al-Abbas said, ‘She-

asws had bequeathed that you two would not pray over her-asws.’ 

Umar said, ‘By Allah-azwj – O Clan of Hashim-as – you will not leave being envious to us, ever. If 
this is the grudge in your hearts, it will never go away. By Allah-azwj, I am thinking of digging 
her-asws out, so I can pray over her-asws.’ 

فقالِعليِعليهِالسلَم:ِ)واللهِلوِرمتِذلكِيَِبنِصهاكِلِرجعتِإليكِيمينك.ِواللهِلئنِسللتِسيفيِلَِّغمدتهِدونِإزهاقِنفسك،ِفرمِذلك(.ِِ
هِِفانكسرِعمرِوسكت،ِوعلمِأنِعلياِعليهِالسلَمِإذاِحلفِصدق.ِثمِقالِعليِعليهِالسلَم:ِيَِعمر،ِألستِالذيِهمِبكِرسولِاللهِصلىِاللهِعلي

 وأرسلِإلي،ِفجئتِمتقلداِبسيفي،ِثمِأقبلتِنحوكِلِقتلك،ِفأنزلِاللهِعزِوجل:ِ)فلَِتعجلِعليهمِإنماِنعدِلْمِعدا(،ِفانصرفوا.ِِوآله

Imam Ali-asws said: ‘By Allah-azwj, if you were to do that, O son of Sahaak, I-asws will return your 
pledge back to you. By Allah-azwj, if I-asws unsheathe my-asws sword, I-asws will not sheathe it back 
until I cause you to die, so do that.’ So, Umar was broken and kept quiet, and he knew that if 
Imam Ali-asws makes a vow, he-asws would always fulfil it.  

Then Imam Ali-asws said: ‘O Umar, are you not the one whom the Rasool Allah-saww intended, 
and he-saww sent for me-asws, so I-asws came wearing my-asws sword, then I-asws came near you for 
killing you, so Allah -azwj Mighty and Majestic Revealed: “Therefore be not in haste against 
them, We only number out to them a number (of days) [19:84].”? So, they left (an extract).10 

Amir Al-Momineen-asws’s Grave was kept secret for nearly 100 years: 

ِبْنِِيَ قْطِيٍنِعَمَنِْذكََرَِ كَِاتِبِِعَلِيِ  إِنَِالَِْشْعَثَِبْنَِقَ يْسٍِشَركَِِفِِدَمِِِِِهُِعَنِْأَبِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِقاَلَ:الكافِِالْعِدَةُِعَنِْسَهْلٍِعَنِِابْنِِيزَيِدَِأوَِْغَيْرهِِِعَنِْسُلَيْمَانَ
 .أمَِيِرِالْمُؤْمِنِيَنِوَِابْ نَتُهُِجَعْدَةُِسََْتِِالَْْسَنَِوَِمَُُمَدٌِابْ نُهُِشَركَِِفِِدَمِِالُْْسَيْنِِع

(The book) ‘Al Kafi’ – The number, from Sahl, from Ibn Yazeed, or someone else, from Suleyman, the scribe of 
Ali Bin Yaqteen, from the one who mentioned it,  

‘From Abu Abdullah-asws having said: ‘Al-Ash’as Bin Qays participated in shedding the blood of 
Amir Al-Momineen-asws, and his daughter Ja’dah poisoned Al-Hassan-asws, and his son 
Muhammad participated in shedding the blood of Al-Hussain-asws.’’11 

 
10 The Book Of Sulaym Bin Qays Al-Hilali, H. 48. 
11 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 44, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 22 H 8 
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The holy grave of Amir Al-Momineen-asws was unknown to general Muslims for nearly 100 
years due to Bani Umayyad's open animosity against Ahl Al-Bayt-asws. Enemies could not find 
traces of the holy grave, and its sanctity was preserved until the threats subdued with the 
commencement of rule of Abbasid caliphs, who – although they still martyred Holy Imams –
had no intention of targeting the sanctity of the Holy grave of Amir Al-Momineen-asws. For 
example: 

كُِنْتُِأَِ ِبْنِِالَْْكَمِِعَنِْصَفْوَانَِالْْمََالِِقاَلَ نََِوَِعَامِرٌِوَِعَبْدُِاللَِِّبْنُِجُذَاعَةَِالَِْزْدِيُِّعِنْدَِأَبِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّ)ِعليهِِعِدَةٌِمِنِْأَصْحَابنَِاِعَنِْأَحَْْدَِبْنِِمَُُمَدٍِعَنِْعَلِيِ 
فأَيَْنَِدُفِنَِقاَلَِإِنهَُِلَمَاِمَاتَِِِجُعِلْتُِفِدَاكَِإِنَِالنَاسَِيَ زْعُمُونَِأَنَِأمَِيَرِالْمُؤْمِنِيَنِ)ِعليهِالسلَمِ(ِدُفِنَِبِِلرَحْبَةِِقاَلَِلََِّقاَلَِِِالسلَمِ(ِقاَلَِفَ قَالَِلَهُِعَامِرٌِ

ِيَمنَْةًِعَنِِالِْْيرةَِِفَدَفَ نَهُِبَيْنَِركََوَاتٍِبيِضٍِِاحْتَمَلَهُِالَْْسَنُِ)ِعليهِالسلَمِ(ِفأَتََىِبِهِِظَهْرَِالْكُوفَةِِقَريِباًِمِنَِالنَِ  جَفِِيَسْرَةًِعَنِِالْغَريِِ 

A number of our companions, from Ahmad Bin Muhammad, from Ali Bin Al Hakam, from Safwan Al Jammal who 
said,  

‘I, and Aamir, and Abdullah Bin Juza’at Al-Azdy were in the presence of Abu Abdullah-asws. So 
Aamir said to him-asws, ‘May I be sacrificed for you-asws! The people are alleging that Amir Al-
Momineen-asws is buried at Al-Rahba.’ He-asws said: ‘No.’ He said, ‘So where is he-asws buried?’ 
He-asws said: ‘When he-asws passed away, Al-Hassan-asws carried him-asws and came with him-asws 
to behind Al-Kufa, near from Al-Najaf, left of Al-Ghary, right of Al-Hira. So he-asws buried 
him-asws between the two white dunes.’  

كَِانَِبَ عْدُِذَهَبْتُِإِلََِالْمَوْضِعِِفَ تَوَهَمْتُِمَوْضِعاًِمِنْهُِثُمَِأتََ يْتُهُِفأََخْبَْتْهُُِفَ قَالَِ  ليِأَصَبْتَِرَحَِْكَِالَلُِّثَلََثَِمَراَتٍِ.ِقاَلَِفَ لَمَا

He (the narrator) said, ‘So when it was afterwards, I went to the place. So I suspected a place 
from it. Then I went over to him-asws and informed him-asws, so he-asws said: ‘You hit it. May 
Allah-azwj have Mercy on you’ – thrice.’12  

The Burial and Holy Grave of Imam Hassan-asws: 

عْتُِأبََِِجَعْفَرٍِعِيَ قُولُِالكافِِمَُُمَدُِبْنُِالَْْسَنِِوَِعَلِيُِّبْنُِمَُُمَدٍِعَنِْسَهْلِِبْنِِزيََِدٍِعَنِِْ ِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِسُلَيْمَانَِعَنِْهَارُونَِبْنِِالْْهَْمِِعَنِْمَُُمَدِِبْنِِمُسْلِمٍِقاَلَِسَِْ
ِأوُصِيكَِبِوَصِيَِ ِصَلَوَاتُِاللَِِّعَلَيْهِمَاِقاَلَِللِْحُسَيْنِِعِيََِأَخِيِإِنّ ِ ِفَ هَيِ ئْنِِِثُمَِوَجِ هْنِِِإِلََِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِِلَمَاِاحْتُضِرَِالَْْسَنُِبْنُِعَلِيٍ  ةٍِفاَحْفَظْهَاِفإَِذَاِأنَََِمِتُّ

 ِإِلََِأمُِ يِفاَطِمَةَِعِلُِِحْدِثَِبِهِِعَهْداًِثُمَِاصْرفِْنِِِ

(The book) ‘Al Kafi’ – Muhammad Bin Al-Hassan, and Ali Bin Muhammad, f rom Sahl Bin Ziyad, from Muhammad 
Bin Suleyman, from Haroun Bin Al Jahm, from Muhammad Bin Muslim who said,  

‘I heard Abu Ja’far-asws saying: ‘‘When death presented itself to Al-Hassan-asws Bin Ali-asws, he-

asws said to Al-Hussain-asws: ‘O my-asws brother-asws! I-asws am bequeathing to you-asws with a 
bequest, therefore preserve it. So, when I-asws pass away, prepare me-asws, then divert me-asws 
towards Rasool-Allah-saww in order to renew a Covenant with him-saww. Then divert me-asws 
towards my-asws mother-asws Syeda Fatima-asws.  

ِبِِلْبَقِيعِِوَِاعْلَمِْأنَهَُِسَيُصِيبُنِِِمِنَِالْْمَُيْراَءِِمَاِيَ عْلَمُِالنَاسُِمِنِْصَنِيعِِ  هَاِوَِعَدَاوَتِِاَِلِلَِِّوَِلرَِسُولهِِِصِوَِعَدَاوَتِِاَِلنََاِأهَْلَِالْبَيْتِِثُمَِرُدَنِّفاَدْفِنِِ 

 
12 Al Kafi V 1 – The Book Of Divine Authority CH 113 H 5 
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‘Then return me-asws and bury me-asws at Al-Baqi’e (Cemetery), and know that there would be 
difficulties for me-asws from Al-Humeyra (Ayesha), what the people know from her actions and 
her enmity to Allah-azwj and to His-azwj Rasool-saww and her animosity towards us-asws, the 
People-asws of the Household.’  

لَِِفَ لَمَاِقبُِضَِالَْْسَنُِعِوُضِعَِعَلَىِسَريِرهِِِوَِانْطلُِقَِبِهِِإِلََِمُصَلَىِرَسُولِِاللَِِّالَذِيكَِانَِيُصَلِ يِفِِ يهِِعَلَىِالْْنََائزِِِفَصُلِ يَِعَلَىِالَْْسَنِِعِفَ لَمَاِأَنِْصُلِ يَِعَلَيْهِِحُِْ
ِعِليُِِفأَدُْخِلَِالْمَسْجِدَِفَ لَمَاِأوُقِفَِعَِ  دْفَنَِمَعَِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِلَىِقَبِِْْرَسُولِِاللَِِّبَ لَغَِعَائِشَةَِالَْْبَُِْوَِقِيلَِلَْاَِإِنََّمُِْقَدِْأقَْ بَلُواِبِِلَْْسَنِِبْنِِعَلِيٍ 

When Al-Hassan-asws passed away and was placed upon his-asws bed, so they went with him-asws 
to the praying place of Rasool-Allah-saww which he-saww used to pray Salat in, upon the 
deceased. He-asws prayed Salat upon Al-Hassan-asws. When he-asws had been Prayed Salat upon, 
he-asws was carried and entered into the Masjid. When he-asws came to be upon the grave of 
Rasool-Allah-saww, the news reached Al-Ayesah, and it was said to her, ‘They have come with 
Al-Hassan-asws Bin Ali-asws in order to bury him-asws with Rasool-Allah-saww.’   

سْلََمِِسَرْجاًِفَ وَقَ فَتِْفَ قَالَتِْنَحُّواِابْ نَكُمِْعَنِْبَ يِْمُبَادِرَةًِعَلَىِ فَخَرَجَتِْ ءٌِوَِلََِّيُ هْتَكُِعَلَىِِتِيِفإَِنهَُِلََِّيدُْفَنُِفِيهِِشَيِْبَ غْلٍِبِسَرجٍِْفَكَانَتِْأوََلَِامْرأَةٍَِركَِبَتِْفِِالِْْ
ِصَلَوَاتُِاللَِِّعَلَيْهِمَاِقَدِيماًِهَتَكْتِِأنَْتِِوَِِ ِرَسُولُِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِحِجَابهُُِفَ قَالَِلَْاَِالُْْسَيْنُِبْنُِعَلِيٍ  أبَوُكِِحِجَابَِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِوَِأدَْخَلْتِِبَ يْتَهُِمَنِْلََِّيُُِبُّ

 نَِالَلَِّسَائلُِكِِعَنِْذَلِكِِيََِعَائِشَةُِاللَِِّصِقُ رْبهَُِوَِإِِ

She (Al-Ayesah) came out rushing upon a saddled mule. Thus, she was the first woman in Al-
Islam to have ridden a saddle. She paused and said, ‘Move away your son from my house, for 
nothing would be buried in it, nor will the privacy be violated upon Rasool-Allah-saww!’ Al-
Hussain-asws Bin Ali-asws said to her: ‘For a long time, you and your father violated the privacy 
of Rasool-Allah-saww and entered into his-saww house the one whose nearness Rasool-Allah-saww 
did not like, and Allah-azwj will be Asking you about that, O Ayesha!  

كِِتَابهِِِمِنِْأَنِْيَ هْتِكَِعَلَىِِإِنَِأَخِيِأمََرَنِّأَنِْأقَُ ر بِهَُِمِنِْأبَيِهِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِليُِحْدِثَِبِهِِعَهْداًِوَِاعْلَمِيِأَنَِأَخِيِأعَْلَمُِ ِالناَسِِبِِللَِِّوَِرَسُولهِِِوَِأعَْلَمُِبتَِأْوِيلِ
وَِقَدِْأدَْخَلْتِِأنَْتِِبَ يْتَِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِِِيَِأيَ ُّهَاِالَذِينَِآمَنُواِلَِّتَدْخُلُواِبُ يُوتَِالنَبِِ ِإِلََِّأَنِْيُ ؤْذَنَِلَكُمِِِْ-ِتَ بَارَكَِوَِتَ عَالََِيَ قُولُِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِسِتْرهَُِلَِِنَِاللََِّ

 الر جَِالَِبِغَيْرِِإِذْنهِِِ

‘My-asws brother-asws instructed me-asws that I-asws bring him-asws to be closer to his-asws (grand) 
father Rasool-Allah-saww, in order to renew a Covenant with him-saww, and I-asws know that my-

asws brother-asws is the most knowledgeable of the people with Allah-azwj and His-azwj Rasool-
saww, and is most knowledgeable with the explanation of His-azwj Book, that for him-asws to 
violate upon Rasool-Allah-saww of his-saww privacy, because Allah-azwj Blessed and High is Saying: 
O you those who believe! Do not enter the houses of the Prophet unless there is permission 
for you [33:53], and you entered certain men into the house of Rasool-Allah-saww without his-

saww permission.  

وَِلَعَمْريِِلَقَدِْضَرَبْتِِأنَْتِِلِِبَيِكِِوَِفاَرُوقِهِِعِنْدَِأذُُنِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِِِِيَِأيَ ُّهَاِالَذِينَِآمَنُواِلَِّتَ رْفَ عُواِأَصْواتَكُمِْفَ وْقَِصَوْتِِالنَبِِِِِِ-جَلَِوَِقَدِْقاَلَِالَلُِّعَزَِوَِِ
 الْمَعَاوِلَِ

‘And Allah-azwj Mighty and Majestic had Said: O you those who believe! Do not raise your 
voices above the voice of the Prophet, [49:2]. By my-asws life! You and your father (Abu Bakr) 
and his Farouq (Umar) had struck a pickaxe near to the ears of Rasool-Allah-saww.  
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وَِلَعَمْريِِلَقَدِْأدَْخَلَِأبَوُكِِوَِفاَرُوقهُُِعَلَىِرَسُولِِِِإِنَِالَذِينَِيَ غُضُّونَِأَصْواتَِمُِْعِنْدَِرَسُولِِاللَِِّأوُلئِكَِالَذِينَِامْتَحَنَِالَلُِّقُ لُوبَُمُِْللِتَقْوىِِ-وَِقاَلَِالَلُِّعَزَِوَِجَلَِ
 مَِمِنْهُمِْأَحْيَاءًِِصِإِنَِالَلَِّحَرَمَِعَلَىِالْمُؤْمِنِيَنِأمَْوَاتاًِمَاِحَرَِاللَِِّصِبِقُرْبُِِمَاِمِنْهُِالَِْذَىِوَِمَاِرَعَيَاِمِنِْحَقِ هِِمَاِأمََرَهُماَِالَلُِّبِهِِعَلَىِلِسَانِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّ

‘And Allah-azwj Mighty and Majestic Said: Surely those who are lowering their voices in the 
presence of Rasool-Allah, they are those whose hearts Allah has Tested for piety. [49:3]. By 
my-asws life! Your father (Abu Bakr) and his Farouq (Umar), due to their being buried nearby, 
is harming to Rasool-Allah-azwj, and they never respected his-saww rights whatever Allah-azwj had 
Commanded them both with, upon the tongue of Rasool-Allah-saww, that Allah-azwj has 
Prohibited the living Momineen from the same as what Allah-azwj has Prohibited from those 
who have passed away. 

كَِانَِهَذَاِالَذِيكَِرهِْتِيهِِمِنِْدَفْنِِالَْْسَنِِعِنْدَِأبَيِهِِصَلَوَاتُِاللَِِّعَلَيِْ  هِمَاِجَائزِاًِفِيمَاِبَ يْنَنَاِوَِبَيْنَِاللَِِّلعََلِمْتِِأنَهَُِسَيُدْفَنُِوَِإِنِْرَغِمَِمَعْطِسُكِِوَِتَاللَِِّيََِعَائِشَةُِلَوْ

‘And I-asws swear by Allah-azwj, O Ayesha! If it was such that this which you are disliking, from 
the burial of Al-Hassan-asws by his-asws (grand) father Rasool-Allah-saww, was allowed, in what is 
between us-asws and Allah-azwj, you would have known that he-asws would be buried, and even 
if it would rub your nose (break your pride).’  

تََلِْكِيَنِنَ فْسَكِِوَِلََِّتََلِْكِيَنِالَِْرْضَِعَدَاوَةًِلبَِنِِِهَاشِمٍِقاَلَِفأَقَْ بَلَتِِِِْقاَلَِثُمَِتَكَلَمَِمَُُمَدُِبْنُِالْْنََفِيَةِِوَِقاَلَِيََِعَائِشَةُِيَ وْماًِعَلَىِبَ غْلٍِوَِيَ وْماًِعَلَىِجََْلٍِفَمَاِ
كَِلََمُكَِعَلَيْهِِفَ قَالَتِْيََِابْنَِالَِْْ  نَفِيَةِِهَؤُلََّءِِالْفَوَاطِمُِيَ تَكَلَمُونَِفَمَا

He (Abu Ja’far-asws) said: ‘Then Muhammad Bin Al-Hanafiyya spoke and he said, ‘O Ayesha! 
One day you are upon a mule, and one day you were upon a camel (Battle of Al-Basra), so you 
are not in control of yourself, nor do you own the earth out of enmity to the Clan of Hashim-

as.’ So, she turned towards him and she said, ‘O ibn Hanafiyya! They-asws are Fatimids (sons of 
Fatima-asws), so what is your speech for?’  

فاَطِمَةُِبنِْتُِعِمْراَنَِبْنِِعَائذِِِبْنِِعَمْروِِبْنِِمََْزُومٍِوَِفاَطِمَةُِبنِْتُِأَسَدِِِِِ-مَُُمَداًِمِنَِالْفَوَاطِمِِفَ وَِاللَِِّلَقَدِْوَلَدَتْهُِثَلََثُِفَ وَاطِمَِ فَ قَالَِلَْاَِالُْْسَيْنُِوَِأَنََِّتُ بْعِدِينَِ
 رِِبْنِِعَبْدِِمَعِيصِِبْنِِعَامِرٍِبْنِِهَاشِمٍِوَِفاَطِمَةُِبنِْتُِزاَئِدَةَِبْنِِالَِْصَمِ ِبْنِِرَوَاحَةَِبْنِِحُجِْ

Al-Hussain-asws said to her: ‘And in what way are you distancing Muhammad from the 
Fatimids? By Allah-azwj! Three Fatimas have given birth to him – Fatima Bint Imran Bin Aiz Bin 
Amro Bin Makhzum; and Fatima Bint Asad Bin Hashim-as; and Fatima Bint Zaida Bin Al-Asammi 
Ibn Rawahat Bin Hijr Bin Abdul Maees Bin Aamir.’   

 .سَيْنُِعِإِلََِقَبِِْْأمُِ هِِثُمَِأَخْرَجَهُِفَدَفَ نَهُِبِِلْبَقِيعِِقاَلَِفَ قَالَتِْعَائِشَةُِللِْحُسَيْنِِعِنَحُّواِابْ نَكُمِْوَِاذْهَبُواِبِهِِفإَِنَكُمِْقَ وْمٌِخَصِمُونَِقاَلَِفَمَضَىِالُِْْ

He (Abu Ja’far-asws) said: ‘Ayesha said to Al-Hussain-asws, ‘Move away your son and go away 
with him-asws, for you all are a disputing people.’ Al-Hussain-asws went to the grave of his-asws 
mother-asws, then brought him-asws out, and buried him-asws at Al-Baqi’e’.’13 

 مِثْلَهُِمَعَِاخْتِصَارٍِوَِزاَدَِفِيهِِوَِرَمَوْاِبِِلنِ بَالِِجَنَازَتهَُِحَتََِّسُلَِمِنْهَاِسَبْعُونَِنَ بْلًَِِقب،ِالمناقبِلَّبنِشهرآشوب

 
13 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 44, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 22 H 9 
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(The book) ‘Al-Manaqib’ of Ibn Shehr Ashub –  

‘Similar to it with brevity, and there is an addition in it, ‘And they shot with the arrows at the 
deceased (body) until they took out seventy arrows from it.’14  

Demolition of Janat Al-Baqi’e: 

The holy grave of Imam Hassan-asws Ibn Ali-asws as well as those of other Imams of Ahl Al-Bayt-

asws who were buried in Al-Baqi’e (Imams Ali-asws Ibn Hussain-asws, Mohammed-asws Ibn Ali-asws, 
Jafar-asws Ibn Mohammed-asws), were being regularly visited by their-asws devotees, which was 
upsetting for the enemies of Ahl Al-Bayt-asws, until they managed to demolish these graves, 
e.g.: 

Al-Baqi Cemetery, the oldest and one of the two most important Islamic graveyards located 
in Medina, in current-day Saudi Arabia, was demolished in 1806 and, following reconstruction 
in the mid-19th century, was destroyed again in 1926 by the House of Saud. The followers of 
the Wahhabi movement known as the Emirate of Diriyah carried out the first demolition. The 
Sultanate of Nejd, also ruled by the House of Saud and followers of Wahhabism, carried out 
the second demolition. In both cases, those involved were motivated by the Wahhabi 
interpretation of Islam, which prohibits the building of monuments on graves.15 

Holy Grave of Imam Hussain-asws Ibn Ali-asws at Karbala: 

When arriving at Karbala in 61 A.H., Imam Hussain bought a piece of land of Karbala, from the 

Bani Asad tribe living close by, already knowing the outcome on the 10th of Muharram, so 

that, after martyrdom, they all are buried in that land, where the shrines are presently 

located. The history of destruction and reconstruction of the shrines of Karbala' is long. We 

find in the history that the shrines suffered repeated destruction from attacking armies, 

although several rulers extended and decorated the shrines and precincts, and kept them in 

good condition.16  

On the other hand, there has been several failed attempts by hostile rulers, such as Al-Rashīd 

and Al-Mutawakkil, to eradicate the signs of the graves at Karbala but instead, Karbala kept 

on developing and turned into a city.17 

With the above short historical background, we turn to Ahadith: 

 
ي طالب ج 4 ص 29 و 42- 44.  14  مناقب آل أب 
15 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Demolition_of_al-Baqi 
16 Among them is Fath-Ali Shah Qajar, who in 1250 AH ordered the construction of two shrines, one over Al-
Hussain's grave and the other over the grave of Al-Abbas-asws ibn Ali-asws 
17 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Imam_Husayn_shrine 
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The Severed Head of Imam Hussain-asws: 

مَامُِأبَوُِالعَلََءِِالْْاَفِظُِبِِِسْنَادِهِِعَنِْمَشَايِِِهِِ أَنَِيزَيِدَِبْنَِمُعَاوِيةََِحِيَنِقَدِمَِعَلَيْهِِرأَْسُِالُْْسَيْنِِعِبَ عَثَِإِلََِالْمَدِينَةِِفأَقَْدَمَِِوَِقاَلَِصَاحِبُِالْمَنَاقِبِِوَِذكََرَِالِْْ
 عَلَيْهِِعِدَةًِمِنِْمَوَاليِبَنِِِهَاشِمٍِوَِضَمَِإلِيَْهِمِْعِدَةًِمِنِْمَوَاليِأَبِِسُفْيَانَِ

And the author of ‘Al-Manaqib’ said, ‘And it is mentioned by the imam Abu Al A’ala Al-Hafiz, by his chain from 
his elders that Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la, when the (holy) head of Al-Hussain-asws was forwarded to him-la, sent 
messengers to Al-Medina, so a number from the friends of the clan of Hashim-as came forward to him-la (for 
going), and he-la combined to them a number from the friends of Abu Sufyan.  

 وَِبَ عَثَِبِرأَْسِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِإِلََِعَمْروِِبْنِِسَعِيدِِبْنِِالْعَاصِِوَِهُوَِإِذِْذَاكَِعَامِلُهُِعَلَىِالْمَدِينَةِِ

And (it is said) he-la (Yazeed-la) sent the (holy) head of Al-Hussain-asws to Amro Bin Saeed Bin 
Al-Aas-la, and he-la was at that time his-la governor upon Al-Medina.  

 هِِفاَطِمَةَِعفَ قَالَِعَمْرٌوِوَدِدْتُِأنَهَُِلَمِْيَ بْعَثِْبِهِِإِلَيَِثُمَِأمََرَِعَمْرٌوِبِهِِفَدُفِنَِبِِلْبَقِيعِِعِنْدَِقَبِِْْأمُ ِِ

Amro-la said, ‘I-la would have loved it if he-la had not sent it to me-la.’ Then Amro-la ordered with 
it, so it was buried at Al-Baqie by the grave of his-asws mother-asws (Syeda) Fatima-asws. 

ِوَجَدْتُِرأَْسَِالُْْسَيْنِِعِفِِخِزاَنةَِِيزَيِدَِبْنِِمُعَاوِيةََِفَكَسَوْتهُُِخََْسَةًِمِنَِال يبَاجِِوَِصَلَيْتُِعَلَيْهِِفِِجَْاَعَةٍِمِنِْأَصْحَابِِوَِقَبَْتْهُُِفَ قَالَِالَْْسَنُِِفَ قَالَِسُلَيْمَانُِإِنّ ِ دِ 
 بَبِِذَلِكَِوَِأَحْسَنَِإِلََِالَْْسَنِِوَِأمَْرَهُِبِِلْْوََائزِِِإِنَِالنَبَِِصِرَضِيَِمِنْكَِبِسَِ

(It is also said) Suleyman (Bin Abdul Malik18 – a ruler from Umayyad) said, ‘I found the (holy) 
head of Al-Hussain-asws in the treasury of Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la, so I clothed it with five from 
the brocades and prayed Salat upon him-asws among a group of my companions and buried it.’ 
Al-Hassan said, ‘The Prophet-saww is pleased with you due to that,’ and he Suleyman (Bin Abdul 
Malik) was good to Al-Hassan and instructed with the reward (being for him).’  

ءَِبِهِِوَِهُوَِعَظِيمٌِأبَْ يَضُِليَِسُلَيْمَانُِبْنُِعَبْدِِالْمَلِكِِفَطلََبَِفَجِيوَِذكِْرَِغَيْرهُُماَِأَنَِرأَْسَهُِعِصُلِبَِبِدِمَشْقَِثَلََثةََِأيَََمٍِوَِمَكَثَِفِِخَزاَئِنِِبَنِِِأمَُيَةَِحَتََِّوَِ
 يْهِِفَجَعَلَهُِفِِسَفَطٍِوَِطيََبَهُِوَِجَعَلَِعَلَيْهِِثَ وْبًِِوَِدَفَ نَهُِفِِمَقَابِرِِالْمُسْلِمِيَنِبَ عْدَِمَاِصَلَىِعَلَِ

And others have mentioned that his-asws (holy) head was hung at Damascus (gate) for three 
days and remain in the treasuries of the clan of Umayya until Suleyman Bin Abdul Malik ruled. 
He demanded, so it was brought to him, and it was extremely white. So, he made it to be in a 
basket, and perfumed it, and made a cloth to be upon it, and buried it in the graveyard of the 
Muslims after having prayed Salat upon it. 

ِعَنِِالْمَوْضِعِِالَذِيِدُفِنَِفِيهِِفَ نَبَشَهُِوَِأَخَذَهُِوَِالَلُِّأعَْلَمُِمَاِصَنَعَِبهِِِفَ لَمَاِوَليَِعُمَرُِبْنُِعَبْدِِالْعَزيِزِِبَ عَثَِإِلََِالْمَكَانِِيَطْلُبُِمِنْهُِالرأَْسَِفأَُخْبَِْبَِِبَْهِِِفَسَأَلَِ
كَِرْبَلََءَِفَدُفِنَِمَعَِجَسَدِهِِعفاَلظاَهِرُِمِنِْدِينِهِِأنَهَُِ  ِبعُِثَِإِلََ

 
18 Abd al-Malik ibn Marwān, c. 675 – 24 September 717) was the seventh Umayyad caliph, ruling from 715 until 
his death. He was the son of Caliph Abd al-Malik ibn Marwan (r. 685–705) and Wallada bint al-Abbas. He began 
his career as governor of Palestine, while his father Abd al-Malik (r. 685–705) and brother al-Walid I (r. 705–
715) reigned as caliphs, see Sulayman ibn Abd al-Malik - Wikipedia 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Sulayman_ibn_Abd_al-Malik
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(It is also reported) When Umar Bin Abdul Aziz became ruler, he sent someone to the place 
demanding the (holy) head from him. He was informed with its news. So, he asked about the 
place in which it was buried. He exhumed it and took it. And Allah-azwj is more Knowing what 
happened with it. The apparent from its behaviour is that it was sent to Karbala and buried 
with his-asws body. 

كِثيرة فِِأنهِِِِأقولِهذهِأقوالِالمخالفينِفِِذلكِوِالمشهورِبينِعلمائناِالْماميةِأنهِدفنِرأسهِمعِجسدهِردهِعليِبنِالْسينِعِوِقدِوردتِأخبار
 مدفونِعندِقبِْأميرِالمؤمنينِعِ

I (Majlisi) am saying, ‘These are words of the adversaries regarding that, and the famous 
between our scholars, the Imamiya, is that his-asws head is buried with his-asws body. Ali-asws Bin 
Al-Hussain-asws had returned it. And a lot of news had been reported regarding it is buried in 
the grave of Amir Al-Momineen-asws (an extract).19  

وِيةَُِبْنُِيزَيِدَِوَِهُوَِابْنُِإِحْدَىِوَِعِشْريِنَِسَنَةًِِهَلَكَِيزَيِدُِلَعَنَهُِالَلُِّوَِهُوَِابْنُِثَلََثٍِوَِسِتِ يَنِسَنَةًِوَِوَليَِالَِْمْرَِأرَْبَعَِسِنِيَنِوَِهَلَكَِمُعَاِِختص،ِالْختصاصِِِ-
ِوَِوَليَِالَِْمْرَِأرَْبعَِيَنِليَْلَةً.

(The book) ‘Al Ikhtisaas’ –  

‘Yazeed-la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la, died and he-la was sixty-three years old, and he-la was in 
charge of the command for four years, and Muawiya son of Yazeed-la died and he was twenty-
one years old, and he was in charge of the command for forty nights.’20 

The Holy Grave of Imam Hussain-asws and the visitors: 

الُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِعِيَالهُُِمِنَِالشَامِِوَِبَ لَغُواِإِلََِالْعِراَقِِقاَلُِ لَِمَاِرَجَعَتِْنِسَاءُِ كَِرْبَلََءَِفَ وَصَلُواِإِلََِمَوْضِعِِالْمَصْرعَِِفَ وَجَدُواِِثُمَِقاَلَِالسَيِ دُِوَ واِللِدَليِلِِمُرَِبنَِاِعَلَىِطرَيِقِ
 لِْنَْصَاريَِِوَِجَْاَعَةًِمِنِْبَنِِِهَاشِمٍِوَِرَجُلًَِمِنِْآلِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّقَدِْوَرَدُواِلزِيََِرَةِِقَبِِْْالُْْسَيْنِِجَابِرَِبْنَِعَبْدِِاللَِِّا

(In a Riwaya) the Seyyid said, ‘And when the womenfolk of Al-Hussain-asws and his-asws 
dependants returned from Syria to Al-Iraq, they said to the guide, ‘Pass us by the road of 
Karbala.’ So, they arrived at the place of the battlefield and they found Jabir Bin Abdullah Al 
Ansari and a group from the clan of Hashim-as, and a man from the Progeny-asws of Rasool-
Allah-saww having had arrived for visiting the grave of Al-Hussain-asws.  

ذَلِكَِالسَوَادِِوَِأقَاَمُواِعَلَىِذَلِكَِأيَََماًِفَ وَافَ وْاِفِِوَقْتٍِوَاحِدٍِوَِتَلََقَ وْاِبِِلْبُكَاءِِوَِالْْزُْنِِوَِاللَطْمِِوَِأقَاَمُواِالْمَآتَِِِالْمُقْرحَِةَِلِلَِْ  كْبَادِِوَِاجْتَمَعَِإلِيَْهِمِْنِسَاءُِ

They arrived at one time and they met each other with the crying and the grief and the 
slapping (Matam), and they established the mourning, which were burning the livers. And the 
womenfolk of that area gathered to them and they stayed upon that for days (an extract)21 

 
19 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 39 H 1 / 18 
20 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 8 H 8 
21 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 39 H 1 / 18 
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Imam Zainul Abadeen-asws’s Conduct during Rulers of his-asws time: 

كَِانَِفِِأيَََمِِإِمَامَتِهِِبقَِيَةُِمُلْكِِِِِإعلَمِالورىِ يزَيِدَِبْنِِمُعَاوِيةََِوَِمُلْكُِمُعَاوِيةََِبْنِِيزَيِدَِوَِمَرْوَانَِبْنِِالَْْكَمِِوَِِكَانَتِْمُدَةُِإِمَامَتِهِِبَ عْدَِأبَيِهِِأرَْبعَاًِوَِثَلََثِيَنِسَنَةًِوَ
َِعِفِِمُلْكِِالْوَليِدِِبْنِِعَبْدِِالْمَلِكِِعَبْدِِالْمَلِكِِبْنِِمَرْوَانَِوَِتُ وُِ ِ.فِ ِ

(The book) ‘I’lam Al Wara’ –  

‘The period of his-asws (Ali-asws Ibn Hussain-asws) Imamate after his-asws father-asws was of thirty-
four (34) years (678 – 712), and during the days of his-asws Imamate was the rule of Yazeed-la 
Bin Muawiya-la, and rule of Muawiya son of Yazeed-la, and Marwan Bin Al-Hakam, and Abdul 
Malik Bin Marwan. And he-asws expired during the rule of Al-Waleed Bin Abdul Malik.’’22 

Al-Hajjaj-la destroyed Kabah during the time of Imam Ali-asws Ibn Hussain-asws  

Tareekh Khalifa bin Khayyat reports that Yazeed-la sent an army to capture Abdullah-la Bin Al-

Zubeyr-la who refused to pay allegiance to him-la. The army of Yazeed-la surrounded Kabah and 

attacked Abdullah-la Bin Al-Zubeyr-la, leading to the burning of the door of Kabah. However, 

during this time Yazeed-la died, and Abdullah-la Bin Al-Zubeyr-la got a respite from the forces of 

Bani Ummiyah, although they attacked Abdullah-la Bin Al-Zubeyr-la again through the army of 

Al-Hajjaj Ibn Yusuf.23  

Al-Hajjaj-la Ibn Yusuf-la was appointed a governor of Makkah by the 3rd Umayyad Caliphate, 

after Yazeed-la, Abd Al-Malik bin Marwan (r. 685–705)24.  Hajjaj was a fierce enemy of Ahl Al-

Bayt-asws, e.g., 

كَِتَبَِإِلََِعَبْدِِالْمَلِكِِبْنِِمَرْوَانَِإِنِْأرََدْتَِأَنِْيَ ثْبُتَِمُلْكُكَِفاَقْ تُلِْعَِِِيج،ِالْرائجِوِالْرائحِرُوِيَِ لِيَِبْنَِالُْْسَيْنِِعِفَكَتَبَِعَبْدُِِأَنَِالَْْجَاجَِبْنَِيوُسُفَ
ِ  ِرأَيَْتُِآلَِأَبِِسُفْيَانَِلَمَاِأوُلعُِواِفِيهَاِلَمِْيَ لْبَثوُاِإِلََِأَنِْأزَاَلَِالَلُِّالْمُلْكَِعَنْهُمِْالْمَلِكِِإلِيَْهِِأمََاِبَ عْدُِفَجَنِ بْنِِِدِمَاءَِبَنِِِهَاشِمٍِوَِاحْقُنْهَاِفإَِنّ ِ

(The book) ‘Al Kharaij Wa Al Jaraih’ –  

‘Al-Hajjaj Bin Yusuf-la wrote to Abdul Malik Bin Marwan, ‘If you want to affirm your kingdom, 
then kill Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws.’ Abdul Malik wrote to him-la, ‘As for after, keep me aside 
from the blood of clan of Hashim-as and stop (spilling) it, for I have seen the progeny of Abu 
Sufyan, when they were involved with it, did not remain for long until Allah-azwj Sent down the 
Angel (of death) on them,’ (an extract).25 

Hajjaj destroyed Holy Kabah without any reservation for its sanctity, firing stones at it, using 

a catapult when his army fought against Zubeyr, e.g.,  

 
22 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 10 H 12 
23 The historical account is based on Tareekh Khalifa bin Khayyat (d. 240 AH) (p. 147-159) who quotes the most 
relatively authentic material in the subject; Courtesy http://www.twelvershia.net/2017/12/31/yazeed-war-
people-madinah-makkah/ 
24 https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Al-Hajjaj_ibn_Yusuf 
25 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 3 H 19 
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كَِانَِآمِناًِفِيهَاِقاَلَِأَِفَ تَعْلَمُِأَنَِالَْْجَاجَِبْنَِيوُسُفَِحِيَنِوَضَعَِالْمَنْجَنِيقَِعَلَىِابْنِِالزُّبَيْرِِفِِالْكَعْبَةِِفَ قَتَِ  لَهُ

He-asws said (Abu Abdullah-asws who said, Hadith to follow): ‘Do you know that Al Hajjaj Bin 
Yusuf, when he placed the catapult for Ibn Al-Zubeyr in the Kabah and killed him (an extract).26 

اِفَ لَمَاِأعُِيدَِالْبَيْتُِوَِأرَاَدُواِأَنِْيَ نْصِبُواِأَنَِالَْْجَاجَِبْنَِيوُسُفَِلَمَاِخَرَبَِالْكَعْبَةَِبِسَبَبِِمُقَاتَ لَةِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّبْنِِالزُّبَيْرِِثُمَِعَمَرُوهَِِِيج،ِالْرائجِوِالْرائحِرُوِيَِ
ِالَْْجَرُِفِِمَكَانهِِِالَْْجَرَِالَِْسْوَدَِفَكُلَمَاِنَصَبَهُِعَالمٌِمِنِْعُلَمَائهِِمِْأَِ  وِْقاَضٍِمِنِْقُضَاتِِِمِْأوَِْزاَهِدٌِمِنِْزهَُادِهِمِْيَ تَزلَْزَلُِوَِيَضْطرَِبُِوَِلََِّيَسْتَقِرُّ

(The book) ‘Al Kharaij Wa Al Jaraih’ –  

‘Al-Hajjaj-la Bin Yusuf-la when he-la destroyed the Kabah, for the reason of fighting against 
Abdullah-la Bin Al-Zubeyr-la. Then he-la re-built it. When the House had been restored and they 
were installing the Black Stone, every time it was installed by a scholar from their scholars, or 
by a judge from their judges, or an ascetic from their ascetics, it would shake and be restless, 
and the Stone would not settle in its place.  

كَِبََِْالنَاسُِِفَجَاءَهُِعَلِيُِّبْنُِالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِأَخَذَهُِمِنِْأيَْدِيهِمِْوَِسََْىِالَلَِّثُمَِنَصَبَهُِفاَسْتَقَرَِفِِمَكَانهِِِ  وَ

‘(Imam) Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws came to it and took it from their hands and Named Allah-

azwj, then installed it, and it settled in its place. The people exclaimed Takbeers.’27  

ِعَنِْإِسْْاَعِيلَِبْنِِأَحَْْدَِاِ ِبْنِِأَحَْْدَِالْعَاصِمِيِ  كُِتُبِِالْمَنَاقِبِِالْقَدِيمةَِِعَنِْعَلِيِ  ِعَنِْأَبِِالُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِالْفَضْلِِرُوِيَِفِِبَ عْضِ ِعَنِْأَحَْْدَِبْنِِالُْْسَيْنِِالْبَيْهَقِيِ  لْبَيْهَقِيِ 
لَمَاِِِِِعَنِْشَقِيقِِبْنِِسَلَمَةَِقاَلَ:بْنِِجَعْفَرٍِعَنِْيَ عْقُوبَِبْنِِسُفْيَانَِعَنِْعَبْدِِالْوَهَابِِبْنِِالضَحَاكِِعَنِْعِيسَىِبْنِِيوُنُسَِعَنِِالَِْعْمَشِِالْقَطاَنِِعَنِْعَبْدِِاللَِِِّ

ِبْنِِأَبِِطاَلِبٍِعِأتََىِعَبْدُِاللَِِّبْنُِالزُّبَيْرِِ ةُِأَنَِامْتِنَاعَِِفَدَعَاِابْنَِعَبَاسٍِإِلََِبَ يْعَتِهِِفاَمْتَنَعَِابْنُِعَبَاسٍِوَِظَنَِيزَيِدُِبْنُِمُعَاوِيةََِعَلَيْهِمَاِاللَعْنَِقتُِلَِالُْْسَيْنُِبْنُِعَلِيِ 
 ابْنِِعَبَاسٍِتََسَُّكاًِمِنْهُِببَِيْعَتِهِِ

It is reported in one of the ancient books of virtues, from Ali Bin Ahmad Al Aasimy, from Ismail Bin Ahmad Al 
Bayhaqi, from Ahmad Bin Al-Husayn Al Bayhaqi, from Abu Al-Husayn Bin Al Fazl Al Qattan, from Abdulah Bin 
Ja’far, from Yaqoub Bin Sufyan, from Abdul Wahhab Bin Al Zahhak, from Isa Bin Yunus, from Al Amsh, from 
Shaqeeq Bin Salama who said,  

‘When Al-Husayn-asws Bin Ali-asws Bin Abu Talib-asws was killed, Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr-la came 
and called Ibn Abbas-la to his allegiance. Ibn Abbas-la refused, and Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la, 

 
26 Bihar Al Anwaar – V 51 The book of History – Imam Al Mahdiajfj, Ch 27 H 8 
27 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 3 H 25 
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And (the poet) Farazdaq inspired in his words, ‘The comfort of his friend almost withholds him, the pillar of 
broken pieces, when he came to receive’’ 

ي مدح الإمام السجّاد عليه السلام و قد ذكرها ما يقرب من 
ن بيتا قالها الفرزدق الشاعر فن ين  هذا البيت من قصيدة تزيد أبياتها على أربعير عشر

 
ّ

ي محله ان شاء الل
ي تفصيل الكلام عن ذلك فن

 عالما من حفاظ السنة و مؤرخيهم و سيأب 
Note: ‘This couplet is from a poem whose couplets exceed more than forty couplets the poet Al-Farazdaq had 
said these in praise of the Imam Al-Sajjad-asws, and it has been mentioned by more than twenty scholars from 
the preserves of the Sunnah and their historians, and I (Majlisi) would be coming with the detailed speech 
about that in its place, if Allah-azwj so Desires.’ 
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thought that the refusal of Ibn Abbas-la was a clinging from him with his-la allegiance – but Ibn 
Abbas refused to assist Yazeed-la either (an extract).28 

ِوِفِِتلكِالسنةِبويعِلعبدِاللهِبنِالزبيرِبِلْجازِوِلمروانِبنِالْكمِبِلشامِوِلعبيدِاللهِبنِزيَدِبِلبصرة.

And in that year (in which Yazeed-la died), allegiance was pledged to Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr 
at Al-Hijaz, and to Marwan Bin Al-Hakam in Syria, and to Ubeydullah Bin Ziyad in Al-Basra (an 
extract).29  

Who was Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr? 

كَِانَِعَلِيٌِّعِيَ قُولُِمَاِزاَلَِِِالَِْشْهَادِِوَِخَطَبَِيَ وْمَِالْبَصْرَةِِفَ قَالَِقَدِْأتََاكُمُِالْوَغْبُِ يَشْتِمُهُِعَلَىِرُءُوسِِكَانَِعَبْدُِاللَِِّبْنُِالزُّبَيْرِِ وَِ اللَئِيمُِعَلِيُِّبْنُِأَبِِطاَلِبٍِوَ
 الزُّبَيْرُِرَجُلًَِمِناَِأهَْلَِالْبَيْتِِحَتََِّشَبَِعَبْدُِاللَِِّ

And Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr used to revile him-asws (Imam Ali Ibn Abi Talib) in front of 
(witnesses) general people, and he-la had addressed on the day of Al-Basra. He-la said, ‘The 
wretched rogue (God Forbid) Ali-asws Bin Abu Talib-asws has come to you all,’ and (in another 
Hadith) Imam Ali-asws was saying: ‘Al-Zubeyr had not ceased to be a man from us-asws, People-

asws of the Household, until Abdullah was a youth,’ (an extract).30  

Attack of Yazeed-la’s Army on Medinah: 

Tareekh Khalifa bin Khayyat reports that when Muslims of Madinah revolted against Yazeed-

la and expelled Bani Ummaiya and Marwan Ibn Al-Hakam from Madina, Yazeed dispatched 

an army against them.31 The army of Yazeed-la, as per his-la instructions, after conquering the 

city of Madina, liberally looted the properties and honour of the Muslims for three days. 

There was so much bloodshed in Medina that blood reached the tomb of the Prophet-saww, 

and his-saww masjid and garden were filled with blood.32 

Army of Yazeed-la attacked Medinah and Conduct of Imam Ali-asws Ibn 
Hussain-asws 

يْنِِعِإِلََِِوَِقاَلَِابْنُِالَِْعْراَبِِِ مَِعَلِيُِّبْنُِالُْْس َ تِبَاحَةِِأهَْلِِالْمَدِينَةِِض َ كَرَهُِلَِّس ْ هِِأرَْبَ عَمِائَةٍِمِنَاِيَ عُولُْنَُِإِلََِأَنِِانْ قَرَضَِجَيْشُِِلَمَاِوَجَهَِيزَيِدُِبْنُِمُعَاوِيةََِعَس ْ نَ فْس ِ
 مُسْلِمِِبْنِِعُقْبَةَِ

And Ibn Al Araby said,  

 
28 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 47 H 1 a 
29 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 49 H 16 
30 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 41, The book of History – Amir Al-Momineen-asws, Ch 107 H 45  
31 The historical account is based on Tareekh Khalifa bin Khayyat (d. 240 AH) (p. 147-159) who quotes the most 
relatively authentic material in the subject; Courtesy http://www.twelvershia.net/2017/12/31/yazeed-war-
people-madinah-makkah/ 
32 Al-Imamah wa al-Siyasah, vol. 1, p. 218.and Tadhkirah al-Khawass, pp. 259-260; Al-Bidayah wa al-Nihayah, 
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‘When Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la headed his-la army for the desecration of the people of Al-
Medina, (Imam) Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws took the responsibility to himself-asws of four 
hundred of us (Bani Hashim), as dependants, until the army of Muslim Bin Uqbah (sent by 
Yazeed) had perished (left Medinah)’ (an extract).33 

ِيزيدِمسلمِبنِعقبةِقالِفإذاِظهرتِعليهمِفأبِهاِثلَثاِبماِفيهاِمنِمالِأوِدابةِأوِسلَحِفهوِللجندِفإذاِمضتِِِِقالِابنِالِثيرِفِِالكامل لماِسير 
 الثلَثِفاكففِعنِالناسِوِانظرِعليِبنِالْسينِفاكففِعنهِوِاستوصِبهِخيراِفإنهِلمِيدخلِمعِالناسِوِقدِأتانّكِتابه

Ibn Al Aseer said in (the book) ‘Al Kamil’ –  

‘When Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la sent Muslim Bin Uqba, he-la said, ‘When you have prevailed 
upon them, legalise (plunder) for three (days) of whatever was therein, from the wealth or 
animals or weapons, so it would be for the army (of Yazeed-la). When the three (days) have 
passed, refrain from the people and look at Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws. Refrain from him-asws 
and connect with him-asws goodly, for he-asws has not entered to be with the people, and his-

asws letter has come to me.  

نِفكلمِعليِبنِالْسينِوِقالِإنِليِرحْاِوِحرميِتكونِمعِحرمكِفقالِافعلِفبعثِبِمرأتهِوِهيِعائشةِابنةِعثمانِبنِعفانِوِحرمهِإلَِعليِبِ
 الْسينِفخرجِعليِبِرمهِوِحرمِمروانِإلَِينبعِوِقيلِبلِأرسلِحرمِمروانِوِأرسلِمعهمِابنهِعبدِاللهِإلَِالطائفِ

Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws spoke and said: ‘There is a kinship for me-asws and my-asws kinship is 
with our kinship.’ He said, ‘I shall do so.’ He sent his wife, and she is Ayesha daughter of Usman 
Bin Affan, and his sanctimonious ones to Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws.  Ali-asws went out with his 
sanctimonious ones and good ones of (the clan of Marwan) to Yanbu. And it is also said, ‘But, 
he-asws sent the good ones of (clan of) Marwan with his son Abd Allah to Al-Taif.  

يُكمِفِِدمائهمِوِأموالْمِوِأهليهمِماِشاءِفمنِامتنعِِِوِلماِظفرِمسلمِبنِعقبةِعلىِالمدينةِوِاستباحهمِدعاِالناسِإلَِالبيعةِليزيدِعلىِأنَّمِخولِله
 منِذلكِقتلهِفقتلِلذلكِجْاعةِثمِأتىِمروانِبعليِبنِالْسين

‘And when Muslim Bin Uqba conquered Al-Medina and legalised (plundered) them, he called 
the people to the allegiance of Yazeed-la based upon that they would be followers of his-la. He-

la would decide regarding their blood and their wealth and their families, whatever he-la so 
desires. The one who refuses from that killed him. So, he killed a large group due to that, then 
he (Muslim Bin Uqba) brought Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws to Marwan (who was governor of 
Medinah before the revolt and was taking refuge outside Medina). 

علىِماِشرطِعلىِِثمِأجلسهِمعهِعلىِالسريرِثمِقالِلعلِأهلكِفزعواِقالِإيِوِاللهِفأمرِبدابتهِفأسرجتِلهِثمِحْلهِعليهاِفردهِوِلمِيلزمهِالبيعةِليزيدِِ
ِأهلِالمدينةِ.

‘Then he seated him-asws with him upon the throne, then said, ‘Perhaps your-asws family is free.’ 
He-asws said: ‘Yes, by Allah-azwj!’ He ordered with his animal, so it was saddled for him-asws, then 

 
33 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 5 H 88 d 
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had him-asws carried upon it (to Medina). He returned him-asws and did not oblige the allegiance 
for Yazeed-la upon what he had stipulated the people of Al-Medina,’’ (an extract).34 

Al-Mutawakkil-la made many attempts to remove the traces of Imam Hussain-

asws’s Holy Grave; 

Ja'far ibn Muḥammad ibn Hārūn Al-Mutawakkil was the tenth Abbasid caliph, ruling from 847 

until his assassination in 861.35 Mutawakkil was an extremely harsh ruler and showed his 

strong opposition and animosity against Ahl Al-Bayt-asws and their-asws followers, by stopping 

the visitors going to the holy grave of Imam Hussain-asws, which was drawing more and more 

visitors during the Imamat of the 10th Imam - Ali-asws Ibn Mohammed-asws Ibn Al-Reza-asws 36, 

who he also poisoned, see for example: https://hubeali.com/article/timeline-of-major-

events-in-islamic-history/  

It was the time of the 10th Imam-asws, when Al-Mutawakkil-la sent Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj to exhume 

the holy grave of Imam Hussain-asws, and to plough over it, so that all traces of the holy grave 

were eradicated.  

ِعَنِْأَحَْْدَِبْنِِعَبْدِِِ ِبْنِِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِسُلَيْمَانَِعَنِِالُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِِالِماليِللشيخِالطوسيِابْنُِحَشِيشٍِعَنِْأَبِِالْمُفَضَلِِالشَيْبَانّ ِ ِعَنِْعَلِيِ  اللَِِّالثقََفِيِ 
كَِتَبَِمَعِيِإِلََِجَعْفَرِِبْنِِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِِمَسْلَمَةَِعَنِْإِبْ راَهِيمَِالدِ يزجَِِقاَلَ: كَِرْبَلََءَِلتَِغْيِيِرِقَبِِْْالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَ ِقَدِْبَ عَثْتُِبَ عَثَنِِِالْمُتَوكَِ لُِإِلََ ِعَمَارٍِالْقَاضِيِأعُْلِمُكَِأَنّ ِ

كَِرْبَلََءَِليَِنْبُشَِقَبَِْْالُْْسَيْنِِفإَِذَِ يَ فْعَلِْإِبْ راَهِيمَِالدِ يزجََِإِلََ كِِتَابِِفَقِفِْعَلَىِالَِْمْرِِحَتََِّتَ عْرِفَِفَ عَلَِأوَِْلمَِْ  اِقَ رأَْتَ

(The book) ‘Al Amaali’ of the sheikh Al Tusi – Ibn Hasheesh, from Abu Al Mufazzal Al Shaybani, from Ahmad Bin 
Abdullah Al Saqafy, from Ali Bin Muhammad Bin Suleyman, from Al-Hussain Bin Muhammad Bin Maslama, from 
Ibrahim Al Deyzij who said,  

‘(Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj narrates) Al-Mutawakkil sent me to Karbala to alter the grave of Al-
Hussain-asws, and he wrote to Ja’far Bin Muhammad Bin Ammar the judge, ‘I am letting you 
know that I am sending Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj to Karbala to exhume (unearth) the grave of Al-
Hussain-asws. When you have read my letter, then pause upon the matter (monitor) until you 
know whether he has done it or did not do it.’  

كَِتَبَِبِهِِإلِيَْهِِفَ فَعَلْتُِمَاِأمََرَنِّبِهِِجَِ يزجَُِفَ عَرفََنِِِجَعْفَرُِبْنُِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِعَمَارٍِمَا عْفَرُِبْنُِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِعَمَارٍِثُمَِأتََ يْتُهُِفَ قَالَِليِمَاِصَنَعْتَِفَ قُلْتُِقَدِْفَ عَلْتُِِقاَلَِالدِ 
 شَيْئاًِوَِلَمِْأَجِدِْشَيْئاًِفَ قَالَِليِأَِفَلََِعَمَقْتَهُِقُ لْتُِقَدِْفَ عَلْتُِفَمَاِرأَيَْتُِمَاِأمََرْتَِبِهِِفَ لَمِْأرََِ

IbrahimAl-Deyzaj said, ‘Ja’far Bin Muhammad Bin Ammar let me know what he (Mutawakkil) 
had written to him with, so I did whatever Ja’far Bin Muhammad Bin Ammar instructed me 
with. He said to me, ‘What have you done?’ I said, ‘I have done what I was ordered with, but 

 
34 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 46, The book of History – Ali Bin Al-Husayn-asws, Ch 8 H 29 b 
35 Ja'far ibn Muḥammad ibn Hārūn al-Mutawakkil ʿalā Allāh (Arabic: جعفر بن محمد بن هارون, romanized: Jaʿfar ibn 
Muḥammad ibn Hārūn); March 822 – 11 December 861, commonly known by his regnal name al-Mutawwakil 
ala Allah (Arabic: المتوكل على الله, romanized: al-Mutawakkil ʿalā Allāh, lit. 'He who relies on God'), was the tenth 
Abbasid caliph, ruling from 847 until his assassination in 861, see al-Mutawakkil - Wikipedia 
36 Twelve Imams - Wikipedia 
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I did not see anything and did not find anything.’ He said to me, ‘Why didn’t you dig deep?’ I 
said, ‘I had done so, but I could not see (anything).’ 

دِْشَيْئاًِوَِأمََرْتهُُِ يزجََِقَدِْنَ بَشَِفَ لَمِْيَُِ كَِرَبهَُِبِِلْبَقَرِِ فَكَتَبَِإِلََِالسُّلْطاَنِِأَنَِإِبْ راَهِيمَِالدِ   فَمَخَرَهُِبِِلْمَاءِِوَ

‘He wrote to the Sultan, ‘Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj had exhumed (the holy grave of Al-Hussain-asws) 
but did not find anything, and I have ordered him, so he has furrowed it with the water and 
tilled it with the cows.’’  

يزجَُِوَِسَألَْتُهُِعَنِْصُورَةِِالَِْمْرِِفَ قَالَِليِأتَ َِ ِالْعَمَاريُِِّفَحَدَثَنِِِإبِْ راَهِيمُِالدِ  ِنَ بَشْتُِفَ وَجَدْتُِبَِريِةًَِجَدِيدَةًِوَِِقاَلَِأبَوُِعَلِيٍ  يْتُِفِِخَاصَةِِغِلْمَانِّفَ قَطِْوَِإِنّ ِ
ِِ اَبِِعَلَيْهِِوَِأَطْلَقْتُِعَلَيْهِِِوَِوَجَدْتُِمِنْهُِراَئِحَةَِالْمِسْكِِفَتَركَْتُِالْبَاريِةََِعَلَىِحَالِْاَِوَِبَدَنَِالُْْسَيْنِِعَلَىِالْبَاريِةَِِوَِأمََِعَلَيْهَاِبَدَنُِالُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِعَلِيٍ  رْتُِبِطرَْحِِالترُّ

 الْمَاءَِوَِأمََرْتُِبِِلْبَقَرِِلتَِمْخَرَهُِوَِتََْرثُهَُِ

Abu Ali Al-Aamiry said, ‘It is narrated to me by Ibrahim Al-Deyzaj, and I had asked him about 
the situation of the matter. He said to me, ‘I came among special ones of my servants only, 
and I exhumed, and found new planks and upon these was the body of Al-Hussain-asws Bin Ali-
asws, and I found the aroma of musk from it. I left the planks to be upon their state and the 
body of Al-Hussain-asws Bin Ali-asws upon the planks, and I instructed with pouring the soil upon 
it, and sprinkled the water upon it and instructed with the cows to plough it.  

كَِانَتِْإِذَاِجَاءَتِْإِلََِالْمَوْضِعِِرَجَعَتِْعَنْهُِفَحَلَفْتُِلغِِلْمَانِّبِِللَِِّوَِبِِِ ِلَِْيْماَنِِالْمُغَلَظةَِِلئَِنِْذكََرَِأَحَدٌِهَذَاِلََِقْ تلَُنَهُِ.فَ لَمِْتَطأَْهُِالْبَقَرُِوَ

‘But the oxen did not tread it. Whenever they came to the place, they returned from it. I 
vowed to my servants with the solemn oath, if anyone were to mention this, I would kill 
him.’’37 

The 12th Imam-ajfj will reinstate the Suspended Tawaaf of Kabah: 

ِعَنِْجَْاَعَةٍِعَنِْهَارُِ يلٍِعَنِِالْقَاسِمِِبْنِِونَِبْنِِمُوسَىِِوَِمِاَِيزَيِدُكَِبَ يَانًَِمَاِرَوَيْ نَاهُِبِِِسْنَادِنََِإِلََِجَدِ يِأَبِِجَعْفَرٍِالطُّوسِيِ  التلََعُكْبَِْيِ ِعَنِِابْنِِهَماَمٍِعَنِْجَِْ
ِنَ قَلْنَاهُِمِِ نْدِيِ  كَانَِأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِفِِالَْْجِ ِفِِالسَنَةِِالَتِيِقَدِمَِفِيهَاِِِنِْأَصْلِهِِقاَلَ:إِسْْاَعِيلَِعَنِْأَحَْْدَِبْنِِريََِحٍِعَنِْأَبِِالْفَرجَِِأبََِنِِبْنِِمَُُمَدٍِالْمَعْرُوفِِبِِلسِ 

 سَنُِبْنُِحَسَنٍِوَِخَلْفَهُِجَعْفَرُِبْنُِالَْْسَنِِأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِتََْتَِالْمِيزاَبِِوَِهُوَِيَدْعُوِوَِعَنِْيَميِنِهِِعَبْدُِاللَِِّبْنُِالَْْسَنِِوَِعَنِْيَسَارهِِِحَِ

And from what can increase you in explanation is what we are reporting by our chain to my grandfather Abu 
Ja’far Al Tusi, from a group, from Haroun Bin Musa Al Talakbary, from Ibn Hammam, from Jameel, from Al Qasim 
Bin Ismail, from Ahmad Bin Riyah, from Abu Al Faraj Aban Bin Muhammad Al Marouf by Al Sindy. We have copied 
it from his original, he said,  

‘Abu Abdullah-asws was in (performance of) Al-Hajj during the year in which Abu Abdullah-asws 
had come to be beneath the spout, and he-asws was in supplication and on his-asws right was 
Abdullah Bin Al-Hassan, and on his-asws left was Hassan Bin Hassan, and behind him-asws was 
Ja’far Bin Al-Hassan.  

 
37 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 50 H 2 
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كَِثِيٍرِالْبَصْريُِِّفَ قَالَِلَهُِيََِأبََِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّقاَلَِفَسَكَتَِعَنْهُِحَتََِّقَالََِْ كَِثِيٍرِقاَلَِفَجَاءَهُِعَبَادُِبْنُ يََِأبََِ اِثَلََثاًِقاَلَِثُمَِقاَلَِلَهُِيََِجَعْفَرُِقاَلَِفَ قَالَِلَهُِقُلِْمَاِتَشَاءُِ
ِوَجَدْتُِفِكِِتَِ  ابٍِليِعِلْمَِهَذِهِِالْبَنِيَةِِرَجُلٌِيَ نْقُضُهَاِحَجَراًِحَجَراًِقاَلَِإِنّ ِ

He (the narrator) said, ‘Abbad Bin Kaseer Al-Basry came to him-asws and said to him-asws, ‘O Abu 
Abdullah-asws!’ He-asws was silent from him until he had said this thrice. Then he said to him-

asws, ‘O Ja’far-asws!’ He-asws said to him: ‘Say what you like, O Abu Kaseer!’ He said, ‘I have found 
in a book of mine knowledge of this building (Kabah), a man would be breaking it stone by 
stone.’  

ِوَِاللَِِّبَِِصْفَرِِالْقَدَمَيْنِِحَْْشِِالسَاقَيْنِِضَِ كَِأَنّ ِ كَِثِيٍرِوَِلَكِنْ كِِتَابُكَِيََِأبََِ كَِذَبَ خْمِِالْبَطْنِِرَقِيقِِالْعُنُقِِضَخْمِِالرأَْسِِعَلَىِهَذَاِالرُّكْنِِوَِأَشَارَِبيَِدِهِِقاَلَِفَ قَالَ
ِيَمنَْعُِ  الناَسَِمِنَِالطوََافِِحَتََِّيَ تَذَعَرُواِمِنْهُِِإِلََِالرُّكْنِِالْيَمَانّ ِ

He (the narrator) said, ‘He-asws said: ‘Your book is lying, O Abu Kaseer! By Allah-saww! It is as if 
I-asws am with (someone of) pale feet, thin legs, huge belly, thin neck, large head, being at this 
corner’ – and he-asws indicated by his-asws hand to the Yemeni corner – ‘Preventing the people 
from performing Tawaaf until they are scared from him.  

ِوَِأَشَارَِبيَِدِهِِإِلََِصَدْرهِِِفَ يَقْتلُُهُِقَ تْلَِعَادٍِوَِثََوُدَِ  وَِفِرْعَوْنَِذِيِالَِْوْتادِِِثُمَِيَ بْعَثُِالَلُِّلَهُِرَجُلًَِمِنِِ 

‘Then Allah-saww would Send to him a man (Al-Mahdi-asws) from me-asws’ – and he-asws indicated 
by his-asws hand to his-asws own chest – ‘He-asws would kill him the killing of (people of) Aad and 
Samood, and Pharaoh-la with the pegs!’ 

كُِلُّ يعاًِ.قاَلَِفَ قَالَِلَهُِعِنْدَِذَلِكَِعَبْدُِاللَِِّبْنُِالَْْسَنِِصَدَقَِوَِاللَِِّأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِحَتََِّصَدَقوُهُ  هُمِْجَِْ

He (the narrator) said, ‘Abdullah Bin Al-Hassan said to him-asws during that, ‘By Allah-saww! Abu 
Abdullah-asws spoke the truth,’ until they ratified him-asws, all of them together.’’38 

Security is guaranteed in the Wilayah of the 12th Imam-ajfj: 

ِعَنِْأَبِِزهَُيْرٍِشَبِيبِِبْنِِأنََسٍِعللِ دَخَلَِعَلَيْهِِأبَوُِحَنِيفَةَِفَ قَالَِِِعَنِْبَ عْضِِأَصْحَابِِأَبِِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِقَالَِ الشرائعِأَبِِوَِابْنُِالْوَليِدِِمَعاًِعَنِْسَعْدٍِعَنِِالْبَْقِْيِ 
 أيَْنَِذَلِكَِمِنَِالَِْرْضِِقاَلَِأَحْسَبُهُِمَاِبَيْنَِمَكَةَِوَِالْمَدِينَةِِِ-سِيروُاِفِيهاِليَاليَِوَِأيَََماًِآمِنِينَِِلَهُِأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعَلَيْهِِالسَلََمُِأَخْبِْْنِّعَنِْقَ وْلِِاللَِِّعَزَِوَِجَلَِ

(The book) ‘Illal Al Sharaie’ – My father and Ibn Al Waleed, both together from Sa’ad, from Al barqy, from Abu 
Zuheyr Shabeen Bin Anas,  

‘From one of the companions of Abu Abdullah-asws who said, ‘Abu Haneefa entered to see 
him-asws. Abu Abdullah-asws said to him: ‘Inform me about the Words of Allah-azwj Mighty and 
Majestic: “Travel in these during nights and days in security [34:18],” where is that from the 
earth?’ He said, ‘I reckon, what is between Makkah and Al Medina.’  

ىِأنَْ فُسِهِمِْوَِيُ قْتَلُونَِقاَلُواِتَ عْلَمُونَِأَنَِالنَاسَِيُ قْطَعُِعَلَيْهِمِْبَيْنَِالْمَدِينَةِِوَِمَكَةَِفَ تُؤْخَذُِأمَْوَالُْمُِْوَِلََِّيََْمَنُونَِعَلَِفاَلْتَفَتَِأبَوُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّعِإِلََِأَصْحَابِهِِفَ قَالَِأَِِ
 نَ عَمِْ

 
38 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 47, The book of History – Ja’far Al-Sadiq-asws, Ch 9 H 25 e 
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Abu Abdullah-asws turned to his-asws companions. He-asws said: ‘Are you knowing that the people 
are being cut off upon them (by bandits) between Al Medina and Makkah, so their wealth 
gets seized, and there is no safety upon themselves, and they are being killed?’ They said, 
‘Yes.’  

كِانَِآمِناًِِِقاَلَِفَسَكَتَِأبَوُِحَنِيفَةَِفَ قَالَِيََِبَِِحَنِيفَةَِأَخْبِْْنِّعَنِْقَ وْلِِاللَِِّعَزَِوَِجَلَِ  أيَْنَِذَلِكَِمِنَِالَِْرْضِِقاَلَِالْكَعْبَةُِِ-وَِمَنِْدَخَلَهُ

He (the narrator) said, ‘Abu Haneefa was silent. He-asws said: ‘O Abu Haneefa! Inform me-asws 
about Words of Allah-azwj Mighty and Majestic: and the one enters it shall be secure [3:97]. 
Where is that from the earth?’ He said, ‘The Kaba!’ 

كَِانَِآمِناًِفِيهَاِقاَلَِأَِفَ تَعْلَمُِأَنَِالَْْجَاجَِبْنَِيوُسُفَِحِيَنِوَضَعَِالْمَنْجَنِيقَِعَلَىِابْنِِالزُّبَيْرِِفِِالْكَعْبَةِِفَ قَتَِ  لَهُ

He-asws said: ‘Do you know that Al-Hajjaj Bin Yusuf-la, when he placed the catapult for Ibn Al-
Zubeyr in the Kabah and killed him, what he secured in it?’  

 الَْْضْرَمِيُِّجُعِلْتُِفِدَاكَِالْْوََابُِفِِالْمَسْألَتََيْنِِقاَلَِفَسَكَتَِفَ لَمَاِخَرجََِقاَلَِأبَوُِبَكْرٍِ

He (the narrator) said, ‘He was silent. When he went out, Abu Bakr Al-Hazramy said, ‘May I 
be sacrificed for you-asws! (What is) the answer regarding the two questions?’  

كِانَِآمِناًِِِفَ قَالَِمَعَِقاَئمِِنَاِأهَْلَِالْبَيْتِِوَِأمََاِقَ وْلهُُِِِسِيروُاِفِيهاِليَاليَِوَِأيَََماًِآمِنِينَِِِبَكْرٍِفَ قَالَِيََِبَِِِ فَمَنِْبَِيَ عَهُِوَِدَخَلَِمَعَهُِوَِمَسَحَِعَلَىِيدَِهِِوَِِِوَِمَنِْدَخَلَهُ
كَِانَِآمِناًِالَْْبََِْ. ِدَخَلَِفِِعَقْدِِأَصْحَابِهِ

He-asws said: ‘O Abu Bakr! “Travel in these during nights and days in security” [34:18], He-azwj 
Said, with our-asws Qaim-ajfj of People-asws of the Household. And as for His-azwj Words: and the 
one enters it shall be secure [3:97], the one who pledges allegiance and enters to be with 
him-ajfj, and wipes upon his-ajfj hand and enters to be among his-ajfj companions, would be 
secure’ – the Hadeeth.’’39 

Appendix I: Attack on Kabah by a king and Conduct of Abd Al-Muttalib-asws 

بدِِمُمدِبنِيعقوب:ِعنِعدةِمنِأصحابنا،ِعنِأحْدِبنِمُمدِبنِعيسى،ِعنِابنِأبِِعمير،ِعنِمُمدِبنِحْران،ِعنِأبِنِبنِتغلب،ِقال:ِقالِأبوِع
 اللهِ)عليهِالسلَم(:ِ»لماِأتىِصاحبِالْبشةِبِلْيلِوِمعهمِالفيلِليهدمِالبيتِمرواِبِبلِلعبدِالمطلبِفساقوهاِ

Muhammad Bin Yaqoub, from a number of our companions, from Ahmad Bin Muhammad Bin Isa, from Ibn Abu 
Umeyr, from Muhammad Bin Hamraan, from Aban Bin Taghlub who said,  

Abu Abdullah-asws said: ‘When the Ethiopian cavalry set out, and they had elephants with 
them, for the destruction of the House (Kabah) they passed by the camels of Abdul 
Muttalib-asws, so they ushered the camels away with them.   

 فبلغِذلكِعبدِالمطلب،ِفأتىِصاحبِالْبشة،ِفدخلِالآذن،ِفقال:ِهذاِعبدِالمطلبِبنِهاشم،ِقال:ِوِماِيشاءِِ

 
39 Bihar Al Anwaar – V 51 The book of History – Imam Al Mahdiajfj, Ch 27 H 8 
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‘That reached Abdul Muttalib-asws, so he-asws came to the Ethiopians. He-asws came up and (the 
guard) called out, ‘This is Abdul Muttalib-asws Bin Hashim-asws!’ He (Abraha the king) said, ‘And 
what does he want?’  

الْبشةِلِصحابه:ِهذاِرئيسِقومِوِزعيمهم!ِجئتِإلَِبيتهِالذيِيعبدهِلِهدمهِوِهوِقالِالترجْان:ِجاءِفِِإبلِلهِساقوهاِيسألكِردها،ِفقالِملكِِ
 يسألنِِإطلَقِإبله!ِأماِلوِسألنِِالْمساكِعنِهدمهِلفعلت،ِردواِعليهِإبلهِ

‘The interpreter said, ‘He-asws has come regarding his-asws camels which were ushered away. 
He-asws is asking for their return.’ So the Ethiopian king said to his companions, ‘This is the 
Chief of a people and their leader! We come to the House which he worships in order to 
destroy it, and he-asws is asking me to return his camels! But, had he-asws asked me to withhold 
the destruction, I would have done it. Return his-asws camels to him-asws.’ 

عبدِالمطلبِِِِفقالِعبدِالمطلبِلترجْانه:ِماِقالِالملك؟ِفأخبْه،ِفقالِعبدِالمطلب:ِأنَِربِالْبل،ِوِلْذاِالبيتِربِيمنعه،ِفردتِعليهِإبله،ِوِانصرف
 نحوِمنزلهِ

‘Abdul Muttalib-asws to his interpreter: ‘What did the king say?’ So he informed him-asws, and 
Abdul Muttalib-asws said: ‘I-asws am the lord of the camels, and for this House is a Lord -azwj to 
prevent it (the attack).’ So he returned the camels back to him-asws, and Abdul Muttalib-asws 
left to go towards his-asws house.  

لب:ِجاءواِبكِفمرِبِلفيلِفِِمنصرفه،ِفقالِللفيل:ِيَِمُمود،ِفحركِالفيلِرأسه.ِفقالِله:ِأِتدريِلمِجاءواِبك؟ِفقالِالفيلِبرأسه:ِلَّ،ِفقالِعبدِالمط
 لتهدمِبيتِربك،ِأِفتراكِفاعلِذلك؟ِفقالِبرأسه:ِلَّ

‘He-asws passed by the elephants during his departure, so he-asws said to the elephants: ‘O 
Mahmoud!’ So the elephant moved its head. Then he-asws said to it: ‘Do you know why they 
have come with you?’ The elephant said with (shaking) its head, ‘No.’ So Abdul Muttalib-asws 
said: ‘They have come with you to destroy the House of your Lord-azwj. Do you see yourself 
doing that?’ It said by (shaking) its head, ‘No.’ 

 فانصرفِعبدِالمطلبِإلَِمنزله،ِفلماِأصبحواِغدواِبهِلدخولِالْرم،ِفأبَِوِامتنعِعليهم،ِ

‘Abdul Muttalib-asws left for his house. When it was the morning, they left by these (elephants) 
to enter the Sanctuary. They (the elephants) refused, and refrained against them.  

ه:ِلَّ،ِوِفقالِعبدِالمطلبِلبعضِمواليهِعندِذلك:ِاعلِالْبل،ِفانظرِترىِشيئا؟ِفقال:ِأرىِسواداِمنِقبلِالبحر،ِفقالِله:يصيبهِبصركِأجْع؟ِفقالِلِ
 أوشكِأنِيصيب،ِفلماِأنِقربِقال:ِهوِطيركِثيرِوِلَِّأعرفهِ

‘Abdul Muttalib-asws said to one of his-asws friends during that: ‘Look at the top of the mountain, 
do you see anything?’ He said, ‘I see blackness in front of the sea.’ So, he-asws said to him: ‘It 
has affected your entire vision?’ He said to him-asws, ‘No,’ and he doubted that he might be 
affected. But when it (blackness) was closer, he said, ‘These are numerous birds and I do not 
recognise them.’  
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كِلِطيرِفِِِ منقارهِحصاةِمثلِحصاةِالْذفِأوِدونِحصاةِالْذف.ِفقالِعبدِالمطلب:ِوِربِعبدِالمطلبِماِتريدِإلَِّالقوم،ِحتَِّلماِصارتِِيُمل
كِلِحصاةِعلىِهامةِرجل،ِفخرجتِمنِدبرهِفقتلته،ِفماِانفلتِمنهمِإلَِّرجلِواحدِيِبِْالناس،ِفلماِأ نِِفوقِرؤوسهمِأجْعِألقتِالْصاة،ِفوقعت

 صاةِفقتلتهِأخبْهمِألقتِعليهِح

‘Each bird carried in its beak a pebble like the gravel. So Abdul Muttalib-asws said: ‘And the 

Lord-azwj of Abdul Muttalib-asws, what He-azwj Intends except for the group (Ethiopian cavalry).’ 

When they came over their heads, they all threw the pebbles unanimously. Each pebble fell 

on an important man (of the cavalry), and came out from his back, killing him. So none of 

them remained except for one man who informed the (Ethiopian) people. So, when he had 

informed them (of what had happened), a pebble came down upon him, killing him.’40  

Appendix II: Additional Ahadith on Severed Head of Imam Hussain-asws 

ِدَاوُدَِلَسَبْعِيَنِأبًِِوَِإِنَِِِوَِقاَلَِالسَيِ دُِوَِابْنُِنَماَِوَِرَوَىِابْنُِلَْيِعَةَِعَنِْأَبِِالَِْسْوَدِِمَُُمَدِِبْنِِعَبْدِِالرَحَْْنِِقاَلَ: لَقِيَنِِِرأَْسُِالْْاَلُوتِِفَ قَالَِوَِاللَِِّإِنَِبَ يْنِِِوَِبَيْنَ
 وهُِالْيَهُودَِتَ لْقَانِّفَ تُعَظِ مُنِِِوَِأنَْ تُمِْليَْسَِبَ يْنَكُمِْوَِبَيْنَِابْنِِنبَِيِ كُمِْإِلََِّأَبٌِوَاحِدٌِقَ تَلْتُمُِ

And the Seyyid and Ibn Nama said, ‘And it is reported by Lahiya, from Abu Al Aswad Muhammad Bin Abdul 
Rahman who said,  

Ra’s Al-Jalout met me. He said, ‘By Allah-azwj! There are seventy fathers (generations) between 
me and Dawood-as, and (whenever) the Jews meet me, they revere me, and you (Muslims), 
there isn’t between you and Muhammad-saww except one father (generation), and you have 
killed him-asws (Al-Husayn-asws)!’ 

كَِانَِيَ تَخِذُِمَََالِسَِالشَِ  راَبِِوَِيََْتِِبِرأَْسِِالُْْسَيْنِِوَِيَضَعُهُِبَيْنَِيَدَيْهِِوَِيَشْرَبُِعَلَيْهِِوَِرُوِيَِعَنِْزَيْنِِالْعَابِدِينَِعِأنَهَُِلَمَاِأُتَِِبرِأَْسِِالُْْسَيْنِِإِلََِيزَيِدَ

And it is reported from Imam Zayn Al-Abideen-asws: ‘When they came with the (holy) head of 
my-asws father-asws Al-Husayn-asws to Yazeed-la, he-la was in a gathering of drinking (wine), and 
they came with the (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws and placed it in front of him-la, and he-asws 
drank (a round) upon it.  

كَِانَِمِنِْ  لرأَْسِِأَشْراَفِِالرُّومِِوَِعُظَمَائهِِمِْفَ قَالَِيََِمَلِكَِالْعَرَبِِهَذَاِرأَْسُِمَنِْفَ قَالَِلَهُِيزَيِدُِمَاِلَكَِوَِلِْذََاِافَحَضَرَِفِِمََْلِسِهِِذَاتَِيَ وْمٍِرَسُولُِمَلِكِِالرُّومِِوَ

‘There was present in his-la gathering that day, a messenger from the king of Rome, and he 
was from the nobles of Rome and their great ones. He said, ‘O king of Arabs! Whose (holy) 
head is this?’ Yazeed-la said to him, ‘What is it to you and this (holy) head?’ 

كُِلِ ِشَيِْ ِإِذَاِرَجَعْتُِإِلََِمَلِكِنَاِيَسْألَُنِِِعَنْ ورِِفَ قَالَِلَهُِيزَيِدُِءٍِرأَيَْ تُهُِفأََحْبَبْتُِأَنِْأُخْبْهَُِبِقِصَةِِهَذَاِالرأَْسِِوَِصَاحِبِهِِحَتََِّيُشَاركَِكَِفِِالْفَرحَِِوَِالسُّرُِفَ قَالَِإِنّ ِ
ِبْنِِأَبِِطاَلِبٍِفَ قَالَِالرُّومِيُِّوَِمَنِْأمُُّهُِفَ قَالَِفاَطِمَةُِبنِْتُِرَسُولِِاللَِِّ هَذَاِرأَْسُِ  الُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِعَلِيِ 

‘He said, ‘I, when I shall return to our king, he will ask me about all things I had seen, so I loved 
to inform him with the story of this (holy) head and its owner until he participates with you-la 
in the joy and cheerfulness.’ Yazeed-la said to him, ‘This is the (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws Bin 

 
ي 1: 372/ 25) 40
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Ali-asws Bin Abu Talib-asws.’ The Roman said, ‘And who is his-asws mother-asws?’ He-la said, ‘Fatima-

asws daughter-asws of Rasool-Allah-saww.’  

ِلَكَِوَِلِدِينِكَِليِدِينٌِأَحْسَنُِمِنِِْ أُفٍ  ِوَِيََْخُذُِفَ قَالَِالنَصْراَنُِّّ كَِثِيرةٌَِوَِالنَصَارَىِيُ عَظِ مُونّ ِ ونَِمِنِْتُ راَبِِِدِينِكَِإِنَِأَبِِمِنِْحَوَافِدِِدَاوُدَِعِوَِبَ يْنِِِوَِبَ يْنَهُِآبَِءٌ
 نَهُِوَِبَيْنَِنبَِيِ كُمِْإِلََِّأمٌُِّوَاحِدَةٌِفأََيُِّدِينٍِدِينُكُمِْقَدَمِيِتَبَُّْكاًِبَِِبِِمِنِْحَوَافِدِِدَاوُدَِوَِأنَْ تُمِْتَ قْتلُُونَِابْنَِبنِْتِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّوَِمَاِبَ يِْ

‘The Christian said, ‘Ugh to you-la and to your-la religion! For me there is a religion better than 
your-la religion. My father is from the lineage of Dawood-as. Between me and him there are a 
lot of fathers (generations), and the Christians are revering me and taking from the soil of my 
feet for blessings with my father being from the lineage of Dawood-as, and you (Muslims) are 
saying (he-asws is) son-asws of the daughter of Rasool-Allah-saww, and there isn’t between him-

asws and your Prophet-saww except one mother. So, which religion is your religion?’ 

كَِنِيسَةِِالْْاَفِرِِفَ قَالَِلَهُِقُلِْحَتََِّأَسَْْعَِفَ قَالَِبَيْنَِعُمَانَِوَِِ عْتَِحَدِيثَ الصِ يِنِبَِْرٌِمَسِيرةَُِسَنَةٍِليَْسَِفِيهَاِعُمْراَنٌِإِلََِّبَ لْدَةٌِوَاحِدَةٌِفِِوَسْطِِِثُمَِقاَلَِليَِزيِدَِهَلِْسَِْ
أَِشْجَارُِالْمَاءِِطوُلُْاَِثََاَنوُنَِفَ رْسَخاًِ اِلْيَاقُوتُ اِلْكَافُورُِوَ أَِكْبَُِْمِنْهَاِوَِمِنْهَاِيُُْمَلُ اِلَِْرْضِِبَ لْدَةٌ اِلنَصَارَىِِفِِثََاَنِيَنِمَاِعَلَىِوَجْهِ أِيَْدِي اِلْعَنْبَُِْوَِهِيَِفِ اِلْعُودُِوَ هُمُ

 لََِّمِلْكَِلَِِحَدٍِمِنَِالْمُلُوكِِفِيهَاِسِوَاهُمِْ

‘Then he said to Yazeed-la, ‘Have you-la heard the narration of The Hoof Church?’ He-la said to 
him, ‘Speak until I-la hear it.’ He said, ‘Between Oman and China there is a sea of a travel 
distance of a year. There isn’t any civilisation in it except one city in the middle of the water. 
Its length is eighty Farsakhs by eighty. There is no city upon the surface of the earth larger 
than it, and from its (land) are carried (exported), the camphor, and the sapphire, and their 
trees of Al-Oud and the ambergris, and it is in the hands of the Christians. There is no kingship 
for anyone from the kings in it besides them.  

فِِ كَِنِيسَةُِالْْاَفِرِِفِِمُِْراَبُِاَِحُقَةُِذَهَبٍِمُعَلَقَةٌِ كَِثِيرةٌَِأعَْظَمُهَا كَِنَائِسُ كَِانَِيَ ركَْبُهُِعِيسَىِوَِقَدِْزَيَ نُواِحَوْلَِِوَِفِِتلِْكَِالْبَلْدَةِ يهَاِحَافِرٌِيَ قُولُونَِإِنَِهَذَاِحَافِرُِحِْاَرٍ
 جَهُمِْإِلََِاللَِِّتَ عَالََِيبَاجِِيَ قْصِدُهَاِفِكُِلِ ِعَامٍِعَالَمٌِمِنَِالنَصَارَىِوَِيَطوُفُونَِحَوْلَْاَِوَِيُ قَبِ لُونََّاَِوَِيَ رْفَ عُونَِحَوَائِِالْْقَُةِِبِِلذَهَبِِوَِالد ِِ

‘And in that city, there are a lot of Churches. Its biggest is the Hoof Church. In its prayer niche 
there is a golden bag hanging, in it is a hoof. They are saying this hoof is of a donkey Isa-as used 
to ride, and they are decorating around the bag with the gold and the brocade. A scholar from 
the Christians goes to it during every year and they circle around it, and they are kissing it and 
raising their needs to Allah-azwj the Exalted.  

كَِانَِيَ ركَْبُهُِعِيسَىِنبَِيُّهُمِْوَِأَِ  نْ تُمِْتَ قْتلُُونَِابْنَِبنِْتِِنبَِيِ كُمِْفَلََِبَِرَكَِالَلُِّتَ عَالََِفِيكُمِْوَِلََِّفِِدِينِكُمِْهَذَاِشَأْنَُّمُِْوَِدَأْبُُمُِْبَِِافِرِِحِْاَرٍِيَ زْعُمُونَِأنَهَُِحَافِرُِحِْاَرٍ

‘This is their affair and their perseverance with the hoof of a donkey which they are claiming 
that it is a hoof of a donkey which their Prophet-as Isa-as used to ride upon, and you (Muslims) 
are saying, (he-asws is) the son-asws of the daughter-asws of your Prophet-saww. May Allah-azwj the 
Exalted not Bless among you all nor in your religion!’ 

بِذَلِكَِِ لئَِلََِيَ فْضَحَنِِِفِِبِلََدِهِِفَ لَمَاِأَحَسَِالنَصْراَنُِّّ ِرأَيَْتُِالْبَارحَِةَِنبَِيَكُمِْفِِِفَ قَالَِيزَيِدُِاقْ تلُُواِهَذَاِالنَصْراَنَِّ قاَلَِلَهُِترُيِدُِأَنِْتَ قْتلَُنِِِقاَلَِنَ عَمِْقاَلَِاعْلَمِْأَنّ ِ
كَِلََمِهِِوَِأنَََِأَشْهَدُِأَنِْلََِّإلَِهَِإِلََِّالَلُِّالْمَنَامِِيَ قُولُِليِ أنَْتَِمِنِْأهَْلِِالْْنََةِِفَ تَعَجَبْتُِمِنْ  وَِأَنَِمَُُمَداًِرَسُولُِاللَِِّصِيََِنَصْراَنُِّّ
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Yazeed-la said, ‘Kill this Christian, lest he shames me-la in his country!’ When the Christian 
sensed that, he said to him-la, ‘You-la want to kill me?’ He-la said, ‘Yes.’ He said, ‘Know that last 
night I saw your Prophet-saww in the dream saying to me: ‘O Christian! You are from the people 
of Paradise!’ I was astonished from his-saww talk, and I hereby testify that there is no god except 
Allah-azwj and that Muhammad-saww is Rasool-saww of Allah-azwj.’  

 ثُمَِوَثَبَِإِلََِرأَْسِِالُْْسَيْنِِفَضَمَهُِإِلََِصَدْرهِِِوَِجَعَلَِيُ قَبِ لُهُِوَِيَ بْكِيِحَتََِّقتُِلَِ

Then he leapt to the (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws and hugged it to his chest and went on to 
kiss him-asws and crying until he was killed.’  

 أْسُِعَلَىِبَِبِِدَارهِِِوَِأمََرَِبِِهَْلِِبَ يْتِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِأَنِْيَدْخُلُواِدَارَهُِوَِقاَلَِصَاحِبُِالْمَنَاقِبِِوَِذكََرَِأبَوُِمَِْنَفٍِوَِغَيْرهُُِأَنَِيزَيِدَِلَعَنَهُِالَلُِّأمََرَِبَِِنِْيُصْلَبَِالرَِ

And the author of ‘Al-Manaqib’ said, and he mentioned Abu Mikhnaf and others that Yazeed-

la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la ordered with, that the (holy) head be hung upon the door of his-

la house, and he-la ordered with People-asws of the Household of Al-Husayn-asws that they-asws 
should enter his-la house.  

وَِالصُّراَخِِوَِالنِ يَاحَةِِعَلَىِالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِألَْقَيْنَِمَاِعَلَيْهِنَِمِنَِِ هُنَِبِِلْبُكَاءِِفَ لَمَاِدَخَلَتِِالنِ سْوَةُِدَارَِيزَيِدَِلَمِْيَ بْقَِمِنِْآلِِمُعَاوِيةََِوَِلََِّأَبِِسُفْيَانَِأَحَدٌِإِلََِّاسْتَقْبَلَِ
ِوَِأقََمْنَِالْمَأْتََِِعَلَيْهِِثَلََثةََِأيَََمٍِ  الثِ يَابِِوَِالْْلُِيِ 

When the womenfolk entered the house of Yazeed-la, there did not remain anyone from the 
family of Muawiya nor Abu Sufyan except he received them-asws with the crying and the 
shrieking and the lamentation upon Al-Husayn-asws, and they threw whatever was upon them, 
from the clothes and the ornaments and established the mourning upon him-asws for three 
days. 

كَِانَتِْقَ بْلَِذَلِكَِتََْتَِالُْْسَِ كُِرَيْزٍِامْرأَةَُِيزَيِدَِوَ يْنِِعِحَتََِّشَقَتِِالسِ تْرَِوَِهِيَِحَاسِرَةٌِفَ وَثَ بَتِْإِلََِيزَيِدَِوَِهُوَِفِِِوَِخَرَجَتِْهِنْدٌِبنِْتُِعَبْدِِاللَِِّبْنِِعَامِرِِبْنِ
 سُِابْنِِفاَطِمَةَِبنِْتِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّمَصْلُوبٌِعَلَىِفِنَاءِِبَِبِِفَ وَثَبَِإلِيَْهَاِيزَيِدُِِمََْلِسٍِعَامٍ ِفَ قَالَتِْيََِيزَيِدُِأَِرأَِْ

And Hind Bint Abdullah Bin Aamir Bin Kureyz, wife of Yazeed-la, came out, and before that she 
had been under (married to) Al-Husayn-asws, until she tore the curtain, and she was 
remorseful. She leapt towards Yazeed-la while he-la was in a general gathering. She said, ‘O 
Yazeed-la! Is the (holy) head of the son-asws of Fatima-asws daughter-asws of Rasool-Allah-saww 
hanging upon the courtyard of my door?’  

 ِعَجَلَِعَلَيْهِِابْنُِزيََِدٍِلَعَنَهُِالَلُِّفَ قَتَلَهُِقَ تَلَهُِاللَُِّفَ غَطاَهَاِوَِقاَلَِنَ عَمِْفأََعْوِليِعَلَيْهِِيََِهِنْدُِوَِابْكِيِعَلَىِابْنِِبنِْتِِرَسُولِِاللَِِّوَِصَريَِِةِِقُ رَيْشٍِ

Yazeed-la leapt towards her and covered her (with a veil) and said, ‘Yes, so ululate upon him-

asws O Hind, and cry upon the son-asws of Rasool-Allah-saww, and the Quraysh shrieked upon him-

asws. Ibn Ziyad-la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la, hastened upon him-asws, so he-la killed him-asws. May 
Allah-azwj Kill him-la.’ (This is a mere political move to shift the blame to Ibn Ziyad-la but Yazeed-
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la ordered him and he executed his orders. This is a political statement, Ibn Marjana-la did what 
he-la asked for, (see Bihar Al-Anwaar vol. 44)41 

كَِانَِيَ تَغَدَىِوَِلََِّيَ تَعَشَىِحَتََِّيَُْضُرَِعَلِيُِّثُمَِإِنَِ  ِبْنُِالُْْسَيْنِِيزَيِدَِلَعَنَهُِالَلُِّأنَْ زَلَْمُِْفِِدَارهِِِالْْاَصَةِِفَمَا

Then Yazeed-la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la, lodged them-asws in his-la house in particular. So, he-

la would neither have breakfast nor dinner, except he-la presented (Imam) Ali-asws Bin Al-
Husayn-asws.’ 

كَِيْفَِأمَْسَيْتَِيََِابْنَِرَسُولِِاللَِِّوَِقاَلَِالسَيِ دُِوَِغَيْرهُُِوَِخَرجََِزَيْنُِالْعَابِدِينَِعِيَ وْماًِيَمْشِيِفِِأَسْوَاقِِدِمَشْقَِفاَسْتَقْبَلَهُِالْمِِ  نْهَالُِبْنُِعَمْروٍِفَ قَالَِلَهُ

And the Seyyid and others said, ‘And (Imam) Zayn Al-Abideen-asws came out walking one day 
in the markets of Damascus, and Minhal Bin Amro met him-asws. He said to him-asws, ‘How is 
your-asws evening, O son-asws of Rasool-Allah-saww?’  

كَِمَثَلِِبَنِِِإِسْراَئيِلَِفِِآلِِفِرْعَوْنَِيذَُبِِ ُونَِأبَْ نَاءَهُمِْوَِيَسْتَحْيُونَِنِسَاءَهُمِْيََِِ مَُُمَداًِعَرَبٌِِّوَِأمَْسَتِِْمِنْهَالُِأمَْسَتِِالْعَرَبُِتَ فْتَخِرُِعَلَىِالْعَجَمِِبَِِنَِِقاَلَِأمَْسَيْنَا
 قُ رَيْشٌِتَ فْتَخِرُِعَلَىِسَائرِِِالْعَرَبِِبَِِنَِمَُُمَداًِمِنْهَاِ

He-asws said: ‘We-asws have come to the evening like an example of the children of Israel among 
the people of Pharaoh-la. They slaughtered their sons and let their women to live. O Minhal! 
The Arabs have come to the evening priding upon the non-Arabs with that Muhammad-saww 
is an Arab. And Quraysh came to the evening priding upon rest of the Arabs with, that 
Muhammad-saww is from them.  

 مِاَِأمَْسَيْنَاِفِيهِِِِإِنََِلِلَِِّوَِإِنََِإلِيَْهِِراجِعُونَِِوَِأمَْسَيْنَاِمَعْشَرَِأهَْلِِبَ يْتِهِِوَِنَحْنُِمَغْصُوبوُنَِمَقْتُولُونَِمُشَرَدُونَِفَِ

‘And we-asws, community of the People-asws of his-saww Household have come to the evening, 
and we-asws have been usurped, killed, expelled. So, we are for Allah-azwj and are returning to 
Him-azwj, from what we-asws have come to the evening regarding it. 

ِمَهْيَارَِحَيْثُِقاَلَِ ِِ-يََِمِنْهَالُِوَِلِلَِِّدَرُّ

 -أرَْجُلِهِمِْأوَْلََّدَهُِوَضَعُواِوَِتََْتَِ  -يُ عَظِ مُونَِلَهُِأعَْوَادَِمِنْبَْهِِِ
بَ عُونَكُمِْ  -وَِفَخْركُُمِْأنََكُمِْصَحْبٌِلَهُِتَ بَعٌِ  -بَِِيِ ِحُكْمٍِبَ نُوهُِيَ ت ْ

‘O Minhal! For Allah-azwj are the gems of Mahyar where he said, ‘They are revering to him, the 
planks of his pulpit, and beneath their feed are his-saww children placed (around). By which 
decision would his-saww children be following you all? And you are priding that you are 
companions of his-saww, followers.’   

ِبْنِِِ كَِانَِعَمْرٌوِصَغِيراًِيُ قَالُِإِنَِعُمُرَهُِإِحْدَىِعَشْرَةَِسَنَةًِفَ قَالَِلَِقاَلَِوَِدَعَاِيزَيِدُِيَ وْماًِبِعَلِيِ  هُِأَِتُصَارعُِِهَذَاِيَ عْنِِِابْ نَهُِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِعَمْروِِبْنِِالَْْسَنِِعِوَ
يناًِثُمَِأُِ يناًِوَِأعَْطِهِِسِكِ   قاَتلُِهُِخَالِداًِفَ قَالَِلَهُِعَمْرٌوِلََِّوَِلَكِنِْأعَْطِنِِِسِكِ 

 
41 Bihar Al Anwaar Volume 44 
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He (the narrator) said, ‘And one day Yazeed-la summoned (Imam) Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws 
and Amro Bin Al-Hassan-asws, and Amro was little. It is said that Amro was eleven years old. 
He-la said to him-asws, ‘Will he-asws wrestle this one?’ – meaning his-la son Khalid. Amro said to 
him-la, ‘No, but give me-asws a knife and give him a knife, then I-asws shall fight him.’  

ِقاَلَِيزَيِدُِ

أعَْرفُِ هَاِمِنِْأَخْزَمٍِ  شِنْشِنَةٌِ
 -هَلِْتلَِدُِالْْيََةُِإِلََِّالْْيََةَِ

‘Yazeed-la said, ‘There is rustling I-la recognise as being from (Abu) Ahza (Al-Taie). Does the 
snake beget except the snake?’ 

ِبْنِِالُْْسَيْنِِاذكُْرِْحَاجَاتِكَِالثَلََثَِاللََتِِوَعَدْتُكَِبِقَضَائهِِنَِ ِوَِقاَلَِلعَِلِيِ 

‘And he-la said to Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws, ‘Mention your-asws three needs which I-la promised 
to fulfil these.’  

كُِنْتَِعَزَمْتَِعَلَىِِوَِأوَُدِ عَهُِوَِِفَ قَالَِالُِْولََِأَنِْترُيَِنِِِوَجْهَِسَيِ دِيِوَِأَبِِوَِمَوْلََّيَِالُْْسَيْنِِفأَتََ زَوَدَِمِنْهُِوَِأنَْظرَُِإلِيَْهِِِ الثاَنيَِةُِأَنِْتَ رُدَِعَلَيْنَاِمَاِأُخِذَِمِنَاِوَِالثاَلثَِةُِإِنْ
هِنَِصِ هَِمَعَِهَؤُلََّءِِالنِ سْوَةِِمَنِْيَ رُدُّهُنَِإِلََِحَرَمِِجَدِ   قَ تْلِيِأَنِْتُ وَجِ 

‘He-asws said: ‘The first is that you-la will show me-asws the face of my-asws chief, and my-asws 
father-asws and my-asws Master-asws Al-Husayn-asws, so I-asws can be provided from him-asws, and 
look at him-asws, and bid him-asws farewell. And the second is that you-la will return to us-asws 
whatever had been seized from us-asws. And the third is that, if you-la have determined upon 
killing me-asws, then you-la should send someone with these womenfolk who would return 
them to the Sanctuary of their-asws grandfather-saww.’  

فَمَاِيُ ؤَِ وَِأمََاِقَ تْلُكَِفَ قَدِْعَفَوْتُِعَنْكَِوَِأمََاِالنِ سَاءُِ دِ يهِنَِإِلََِالْمَدِينَةِِغَيْركَُِوَِأمََاِمَاِأُخِذَِمِنْكُمِْفأََنََِأعَُوِ ضُكُمِْعَنْهُِِفَ قَالَِأمََاِوَجْهُِأبَيِكَِفَ لَنِْتَ راَهُِأبََداًِ
 أَضْعَافَِقِيمَتِهِِ

‘He-la said, ‘As for the face of your-asws father-asws, so you-asws will never see it, ever! And as for 
killing you-asws, so I-la hereby pardon you-asws. And as for the womenfolk, so not one would 
return them-asws to Al-Medina apart from you-asws. And as for what has been seized from you-

asws all, I-la shall compensate you-asws all from it, double of its value.’  

 زَلَِفاَطِمَةَِبنِْتِِمَُُمَدٍِصِوَِمِقْنَعَتَهَاِوَِقِلََدَتَِاَِوَِقَمِيصَهَافَ قَالَِعِأمََاِمَالُكَِفَمَاِنرُيِدُهُِوَِهُوَِمُوَفَ رٌِعَلَيْكَِوَِإِنَماَِطلََبْتُِمَاِأُخِذَِمِنَاِلَِِنَِفِيهِِمِغِْ

‘He-asws said: ‘As for your-la wealth, we-asws do not want it, and it is a saving upon you-la, and 
rather I-asws sought whatever had been seized from us-asws because in it was a spinning wheel 
of (Syeda) Fatima-asws daughter-asws of Muhammad-saww, and her-asws scarf, and her-asws 
necklace, and her-asws dress.’ 

أمََرَِبِرَدِ ِالُِْسَارَىِوَِسَبَايََِالْبَتُولِِإِلََِأوَْطاَنَِِّمِْبمدَِينَةِِِفأََمَرَِبِرَدِ ِذَلِكَِوَِزاَدَِعَلَيْهِِمِائَتَيِْدِينَارٍِفأََخَذَهَاِزَيْنُِالْعَابِدِينَِعِوَِفَ رقََ هَاِفِِالْفُقَراَءِِ ِوَِالْمَسَاكِيِنِثُمَِ
 الرَسُولِِ
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‘He-la ordered with returning that and increased upon it by two hundred Dinars. (Imam) Zayn 
Al-Abideen-asws took it and distributed it among the poor and the needy. Then he-la ordered 
with returning the prisoners and the captives of Al-Batul (Syeda Fatima-asws) to their-asws 
homeland city of the Rasool-saww.’  

جُْْهُورٍِأنَهَُِدَخَلَِخِزاَنةََِيزَيِدَِبْنِِمُعَاوِيةََِِالشَريِفُِاخْتَلَفَِالنَاسُِفِيهِِفَ قَالَِقَ وْمٌِإِنَِعَمْرَوِبْنَِسَعِيدٍِدَفَ نَهُِبِِلْمَدِينَةِِوَِعَنِْمَنْصُورِِبْنِِِقاَلَِابْنُِنَماَِوَِأمََاِالرأَْسُِِ
كُِنُوزِِبَنِِِأمَُيَةَِلَمَاِفتُِحَتِْوَجَدَِبهِِِجُؤْنةًَِحَْْراَءَِفَ قَالَِلغُِلََمِهِِسُلَِ كَِنْزٌِمِنْ  يْمٍِاحْتَفِظِْبُِذَِهِِالْْؤُْنةَِِفإَِنََّاَ

Ibn Nama said, ‘As for the noble (holy) head, the people are differing in it. A group said that 
Amro Bin Saeed-la buried it at Al-Medina. And from Mansour Bin Jamhour is that he had 
entered a treasury of Yazeed-la Bin Muawiya-la. When it was opened, a red container was 
found to be in it. He-la said to his-la slave Suleym, ‘Preserve this container for it is a treasure 
from the treasures of the clan of Umayya.’  

تَاهُِبِهِِفَ لَفَهُِثُمَِدَفَ نَهُِبِدِمَشْقَِعِنْدَِبَِبِِالْفَراَدِيسِِعِنْدَِالْبُْجِِْالثاَلِثِِفَ لَمَاِفَ تَحَهَاِإِذَاِفِيهَاِرأَْسُِالُْْسَيْنِِعِوَِهُوَِمََْضُوبٌِبِِلسَوَادِِفَ قَالَِلغُِلََمِهِِائْتِنِِِبثَِوْبٍِفأََِ
 مِاَِيلَِيِالْمَشْرقَِِ

‘When he-la opened it, therein was (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws, and it was dyed with the 
black dye. He-la said to his-la slave, ‘Bring me-la a cloth!’ He came to him-la with it. He-la wrapped 
it, then buried it at Damascus by the door Al-Faradis in the fourth tower from what follows 
the east.’ 

مِنِْأهَْلِِمِصْرَِأَنَِمَشْهَدَِالرأَْسِِعِنْدَهُمِْيُسَمُّونهَُِمَشْهَدَِالْكَريِِمِعَلَيْهِِمِنَِ كَِثِيٌرِيَ قْصِدُونهَُِفِِالْمَوَاسِمِِوَِيَ زُورُونهَُِوَِيَ زْعُمُونَِأنَهَُِِالذَهَبِِشَيِِْوَِحَدَثَنِِِجَْاَعَةٌِ ءٌ
 ِالْبِلََدِِوَِدُفِنَِمَعَهُِمَدْفُونٌِهُنَاكَِوَِالَذِيِعَلَيْهِِالْمُعَوَلُِمِنَِالِْقَْ وَالِِأنَهَُِأعُِيدَِإِلََِالَْْسَدِِبَ عْدَِأَنِْطِيفَِبِهِِفِِ

‘And it is narrated to me by a group from the people of Egypt that the scenario (presence) of 
the (holy) head is with them. They are naming it as ‘Mashad Al-Kareem’ (the honourable 
view). Upon it there are many things of gold. They are going to it during the seasons and are 
visiting it and claiming that it is buried over there. And the most reliable from the word is that 
it was returned to the body afterward after it had been roamed around with in the cities and 
was buried with him-asws.’  

كَِانَِعَمَلُِالطاَئفَِةِِعَلَىِهَذَاِالْمَعْنََِالْمُشَارِِإلِيَْهِِوِوَِقاَلَِالسَيِ دُِفأََمَاِرأَْسُِالُْْسَيْنِِفَ رُوِيَِأنَهَُِأعُِيدَِفَدُفِنَِبِكَرْبَلََءَِمَعَِجَسَدِهِِالشَريِفِِصَلَِ وَاتُِاللَِِّعَلَيْهِِوَ
كِثيرةِغيرِماِذكرنَ ِهِتركناِوضعهاِلئلَِينفسخِماِشرطناهِمنِاختصارِالكتابِرويتِآثارِمَتلفة

And the Seyyid said, ‘As for the (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws, it is reported that it was returned 
and buried at Karbala with the noble body, may the Salawaat of Allah-azwj be upon him-asws. 
And the working of the sect is upon this meaning, the one indicated to, and many varying 
narrations have been reported apart from what we have mentioned. We have left these lest 
it breaks what we had stipulated of keeping the book short.’42 

In another Hadith; 

 
42 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 39 H 1 / 17 
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سَألَْتُِأَبِِعَلِيَِبْنَِالُْْسَيْنِِعَنِْحَْْلِِيزَيِدَِلهَُِِالْمَصَابيِحِِبِِِسْنَادِهِِإِلََِجَعْفَرِِبْنِِمَُُمَدٍِعِقاَلَِقاَلَِليِأَبِِمَُُمَدُِبْنُِعَلِيٍِقل،ِإقبالِالِعمالِرأَيَْتُِفِكِِتَابِِ
لر مَِاحِِإِنِِْ]وَاكِفَةً[ِوَِالْفَارطِةَُِخَلْفَنَاِوَِحَوْلنََاِبِِِِِِ-غَالٍِفأكففَ قَالَِحَْلََنِِِعَلَىِبعَِيٍرِيَطْلُعُِبِغَيْرِِوِطاَءٍِوَِرأَْسُِالُْْسَيْنِِعِعَلَىِعَلَمٍِوَِنِسْوَتُ نَاِخَلْفِيِعَلَىِبِِ

ِسَبَايََِأهَْلِِالْبَيْتِِالْمَلْعُونِ.هَؤُلََّءِِدَمَعَتِْمِنِْأَحَدِنََِعَيْنٌِقرُعَِِرأَْسُهُِبِِلرُّمْحِِحَتََِّإِذَاِدَخَلْنَاِدِمَشْقَِصَاحَِصَائِحٌِيََِأهَْلَِالشَامِِ

(The book) ‘Iqbal Al Amaal’ – ‘I saw in the book ‘Al Masabeeh,’ by his chain to,  

Ja’far-asws Bin Muhammad-asws having said: ‘Muhammad-asws Bin Ali-asws said to me-asws: ‘I asked 
my-asws father-asws Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws about the transporting by Yazeed-la for him-asws. 
He-asws said: ‘He-la had me-asws carried upon a camel without a saddle, and the (holy) head of 
Al-Husayn-asws was upon a flag, and our-asws womenfolk were behind me-asws upon bareback 
mules, and the harsh ones were behind us-asws and around us with the spears. If anyone of 
us-asws shed a tear, his head would be knocked. Upon entering Damascus, a shouter shouted, 
‘O people of Syria! These captives people of the accursed Household (God Forbid)!’’’43 

لواِفِِجْعِآلةِِوِذكرِمُمدِبنِجريرِالطبْيِفِِتاريِهِأنِأولِماِابتدأِبهِالشيعةِمنِأمرهمِسنةِإحدىِوِستينِوِهيِالسنةِالتيِقتلِفيهاِالْسينِفماِزا
كانِبينِمقتلِالْسينِعِوِهلَكِالْربِوِالَّستعدادِللقتالِوِدعاءِالشيعةِبعضهمِلبعضِفِِالسرِللطلبِبدمِالْسينِعِحتَِّماتِيزيدِبنِمعاويةِوِِ

 يزيدِثلَثِسنينِوِشهرانِوِأربعةِأيَمِ

And Muhammad Bin Jareer Al-Tabari mentioned in his history: The first of what the Shias 
began their matter with was in the year sixty-one, and it is the year in which (Imam) Al-
Husayn-asws was killed. They did not cease to amass the weapons of war and preparing for the 
battle and calling the Shias to each other in the secrecy for seeking the blood of Al-Husayn-

asws, until Yazeed Bin Muawiya-la died. And between the killing of Al-Husayn-asws and death of 
Yazeed-la, were three years and two months and four days.  

كِانِعبدِاللهِبنِالزبيرِقبلِموتِيزيدِيدعوِالناسِإلَِطلبِثأ كِانِأميرِالعراقِعبيدِاللهِوِخليفتهِبِلكوفةِعمروِبنِحريثِالمخزوميِو رِالْسينِوِِو
ِأصحابهِوِيغريهمِبيزيدِوِيوثبهمِعليهِفلماِماتِيزيدِأعرضِعنِذلكِالقولِوِبِنِأنهِيطلبِالملكِلنفسهِلَِّللثأرِ.

The Emir of Al-Iraq was Ubeydullah-la and his-la caliph at Al-Kufa was Amro Bin Hureys Al-
Makhzumi, and Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr, before the death of Yazeed-la, had called the people 
to seek the retaliation of Al-Husayn-asws and his-asws companions, and he lured them with 
Yazeed-la and got them to leap against him-la. When Yazeed-la died, he was exposed from that 
word and that he had been seeking the kingdom for himself not for the retaliation. 

 وِذكرِالمدائنِِعنِرجالهِأنِالمختارِلماِقدمِعلىِعبدِاللهِبنِالزبيرِلمِيرِعندهِماِيريدِ

And Al-Madainy mentioned from his men, ‘When Al-Mukhtar-ra arrived to Abdullah Bin Al-
Zubeyr, he-ra did not see with him what he-ra wanted.  

إِلَِِ اِلمختارِمنِمكةِمتوجها لِوكِانِلْمِرجلِيُمعهمِعلىِشيفخرج أِهلهاِفقال اِلوداعيِفسألهِعن أِبِِحية فِلقيهِهانئِبن اِلِرضِالكوفة ءِواحدِلِكل
 بُم

 
43 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 39 H 2 
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‘Al-Mukhtar-ra went out from Makkah heading to Al-Kufa. He-ra met Hany Bin Abu Hayyah Al-
Wadie. He-ra asked him about its people. He said, ‘If there had been any man for them who 
would unite them upon one thing, he could consume the earth with them.’  

كِلِجبارِعنيدِإنِشاءِاللهِو  لَِّقُ وَةَِإِلََِّبِِللَِِِِّفقالِالمختارِأنَِوِاللهِأجْعهمِعلىِالْقِوِألقيِبُمِركبانِالباطلِوِأقتلِبُم

‘Al-Mukhtar-ra said, ‘By Allah-azwj! I-ra shall unite them upon the truth and by them I-ra shall 
throw off the riders of falsehood, and by them I-ra shall kill every obstinate tyrant, if Allah-azwj 
so Desires, and there is no strength except with Allah-azwj!’ 

بنِصردِهلِتوجهِلقتالِالمحلينِقالِلَِّوِلكنهمِعازمونِعلىِذلكِثمِسارِالمختارِحتَِّانتهىِإلَِنَّرِالْيرةِوِهوِيومِالْمعةِِ ثمِسألهِالمختارِعنِسليمانِ
 فنزلِوِاغتسلِوِلبسِثيابهِوِتقلدِسيفهِوِركبِفرسهِوِدخلِالكوفةِنَّارا

‘Then Al-Mukhtar-ra asked him about Suleyman Bin Sard, ‘Is his intention of fighting the 
locals?’ He said, ‘No, but they are determining upon that.’ Then Al-Mukhtar-ra travelled until 
he-ra ended up to the river Al-Heyra, and it was the day of Friday. He-ra descended and washed, 
and wore his-ra clothes, and collared his-ra sword, and rode his-ra horse and entered Al-Kufa at 
daytime.  

تَبونِوِأنَِالمسلطِعلىِالفاسقينِوِلَِّيمرِعلىِمسجدِالقبائلِوِمَالسِالقومِوِمَتمعِالمحالِإلَِّوقفِوِسلمِوِقالِأبشرواِبِلفرجِفقدِجئتكمِبماِِ
ِالطالبِبدمِأهلِبيتِنبِربِالعالمينِ.

‘He-ra did not pass by any Masjid of the tribes, and gatherings of the people, and a crown of 
the neighbourhoods, except he-ra stood and greeted and said, ‘Receive glad tidings, for I-ra 
have come to you all with what you love, and I-ra shall overcome upon the mischief-makers 
and seek the blood of People-asws of the Household of the Prophet-saww of Lord-azwj of the 
Worlds!’ 

 ثمِدخلِالْامعِوِصلىِفيهِفرأىِالناسِينظرونِإليهِوِيقولِبعضهمِلبعضِهذاِالمختارِماِقدمِإلَِّلِمرِوِنرجوِبهِالفرج

‘Then he-ra entered the central Masjid and prayed Salat in it. He-ra saw the people looking at 
him-ra and saying to each other, ‘This is Al-Mukhtar-ra! He-ra has not come except for a matter, 
and we are hoping for the relief through him-ra.’  

أهلِالبيتِِِوِخرجِمنِالْامعِوِنزلِدارهِوِيعرفِقديماِبسالمِبنِالمسيبِثمِبعثِإلَِوجوهِالشيعةِوِعرفهمِأنهِجاءِمنِمُمدِبنِالْنفيةِللطلبِبدماء
 وِهذاِأمرِلكمِفيهِالشفاءِوِقتلِالِعداء

‘And he-ra went out from the central Masjid and descended in his-ra house and he-ra had known 
Saalim Bin Al-Musayyab for a long time. Then he-ra sent him to the faces of the Shias and he 
made them understand that he-ra had come from Muhammad Bin Al-Hanafiyya to seek the 
bloods of People-asws of the Household, and that there is the healing in this matter of theirs 
and killing of the enemies. 

 فقالواِأنتِموضعِذلكِوِأهلهِغيرِأنِالناسِقدِبِيعواِسليمانِبنِصردِالْزاعيِفهوِشيخِالشيعةِاليومِفلَِتعجلِفِِأمرك



Sanctity and Protection of Holy Sites     www.hubeali.com 

Page 32 of 36 

‘They said, ‘You-ra are the place of that and its rightful one, apart from that the people have 
already pledged allegiance to Suleyman Bin Sard Al-Khuzaie, so he is the Sheikh of the Shias 
today. Do not be hasty in your-ra matter!’ 

كِانِِفسكتِالمختارِوِأقامِينتظرِماِيكونِمنِأمرِسليمانِوِالشيعةِحينئذِيريدونِأمرهمِسراِخوفاِمنِعبدِالملكِبنِمروانِوِمنِعبدِاللهِبنِا لزبيرِو
 خوفِالشيعةِمنِأهلِالكوفةِأكثرِلِنِأكثرهمِقتلةِالْسينِع

‘Al-Mukhtar-ra was silent and stayed awaiting what would happen from the matter of 
Suleyman and the Shias. In those days they were wanting their matters to be secretive from 
Abdul Malik Bin Marwan and from Abdullah Bin Al-Zubeyr, and the fear of the Shias from the 
people of Al-Kufa was more because most of them were killers of Al-Husayn-asws.  

 وِصارِالمختارِيفخذِالناسِعنِسليمانِبنِصردِوِيدعوهمِإلَِنفسهِفأولِمنِبِيعهِوِضربِعلىِيدهِعبيدِبنِعمرِوِإسْاعيلِبنكِثير

‘And Al-Mukhtar-ra began taking the people away from Suleyman Bin Sard and calling them to 
himself-ra. So, the first ones to pledge to him-asws and strike upon his-asws hand were Ubeyd Bin 
Umar, and Ismail Bin Kaseer.  

كمِفسيرواِِفقالِعمرِبنِسعدِوِشبثِبنِربعيِلِهلِالكوفةِإنِالمختارِأشدِعليكمِلِنِسليمانِإنماِخرجِيقاتلِعدوكمِوِالمختارِإنماِيريدِأنِيثبِعلي
 إليهِوِأوثقوهِبِلْديدِوِخلدوهِالسجنِ

‘Umar Bin Sa’ad-la and Shabas Bin Rabie-la said to the people of Al-Kufa, ‘Al-Mukhtar-ra would 
be severer upon you all because Suleyman rather had gone out to fight your enemies, and Al-
Mukhtar-ra rather wants to pounce upon you all. So, travel to him-ra, and bind him-ra with the 
iron fetters and let him-ra be eternally in the prison.’  

كِتافاِوِمشهِحافياِفقالِلهِلمِأفعلِهذ اِبرجلِلمِيظهرِِفماِشعرِحتَِّأحاطواِبدارهِوِاستخرجوهِفقالِإبراهيمِبنِمُمدِبنِطلحةِلعبدِاللهِبنِيزيدِأوثقه
 لناِعداوةِوِلَِّحربِِإنماِأخذنَهِعلىِالظنِفأتِِببغلةِلهِدهماءِفركبهاِوِأدخلوهِالسجن

‘He-ra was not aware before they had surrounded his-ra house and brought him-ra out. Ibrahim 
Bin Muhammad Bin Talha said to Abdullah Bin Yazeed, ‘Tie him-ra at the shoulders and make 
him-ra walk bare-footed!’ He said, ‘I will not do this with a man who had not revealed enmity 
to us, nor has he-ra battled. But rather, we are seizing him upon the conjecture.’ So they came 
with a mule of his-ra (called) ‘Dahma’a.’ He-ra rode it and they entered him-ra into the prison. 

الملَئكةِِِقالِيُيىِبنِأبِِعيسىِدخلتِمعِحْيدِبنِمسلمِالِزديِإلَِالمختارِفسمعتهِيقولِأماِوِربِالبحارِوِالنخلِوِالِشجارِوِالمهامةِالقفارِو
جْوعِمنِالِنصارِليسواِبميلِوِلَِّأغمارِوِلَِّبعزلِأشرارِحتَِّإذاِأقمتِ الِبرارِوِالمصطفينِالِخيارِلِقتلنكِلِجبارِبكلِلدنِخطارِوِمهندِبتارِفِِ

ِعمودِالدينِوِرأيتِصدعِالمسلمينِوِأدركتِثأرِالنبيينِلمِيكبِْعلىِزوالِالدنياِوِلمِأحفلِبِلموتِإذِأتى.

‘Yahya Bin Abu Isa said, ‘I had entered with Hameed Bin Muslim Al-Azdy to see Al-Mukhrat-

asws, and I heard him-ra saying, ‘But, by the Lord-azwj of the seas, and the palm trees, and the 
trees, and the important deserts, and the righteous Angels, and the goodly Chosen ones! I-ra 
shall kill every tyrant with every risk exposure, and sharp sword, in a crowd from the helpers, 
who are neither with inclined nor dumbfounded, nor isolating with the evil ones, until when 
the pillars of religion are established, and I-ra seek the cracks of the Muslims and realised the 
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retaliation of the Prophets-as, I-ra will not get old upon the declining world, and I-ra will not 
concern with the death when it comes!’’44 

هِِعَنِِالْكُوفِِ ِعَنِْنَصْرِِبْنِِمُزاَحِمٍِعَنِْلُوطِِبِْ كَِعْبٍِعَنِِْوَِرَوَىِالصَدُوقُِفِِالَِْمَاليِعَنِْمَاجِيلَوَيْهِِعَنِْعَمِ  فاَطِمَةَِبنِْتِِعَلِيٍ ِصِنِِيَُْيَىِعَنِِالْْاَرِثِِبْنِ
ِحَتََِّتَ قَشَرَتِْوُجُوهُهُمِْثُمَِإِنَِيزَيِدَِلَعَنَهُِالَلُِّأمََرَِبنِِسَاءِِالُْْسَيْنِِفحبسِ]فَحُبِسْنَِِقاَلَتِْ ِوَِلََِّقَ رٍ  ِبْنِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِفِِمَُْبِسٍِلََِّيَكُنُّهُمِْمِنِْحَرٍ   [ِمَعَِعَلِيِ 

And it reported by Al Sadouq in ‘Al Amaali,’ from Majaylawiya, from his uncle,from Al Kufy, from Nasr Bin 
Muazhim, from Lut Bin Yahya, from Al Haris Bin Ka’ab,  

‘From (Syeda) Fatima-asws Bint Ali-asws having said: ‘Then Yazeed-la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la, 
ordered with the womenfolk of Al-Husayn-asws, so they-asws were imprisoned along with Ali-asws 
Bin Al-Husayn-asws in a prison they-asws could neither hide from the heat nor the cold, until 
their-asws faces peeled off.   

يُ رْفَعِْببَِيْتِِالْمَقْدِسِِحَجَرٌِعَلَىِوَجْهِِالَِْرْضِِإِلََِّوُجِدَِتََْتَهُِدَمٌِعَبِيطٌِوَِأبَْصَرَِالنَاسُِِ كَِأَنََّاَِالْمَلََحِفُِالْمُعَصْفَرَةُِإِلََِأَنِِْوَِلمَِْ الشَمْسَِعَلَىِالْْيِطاَنِِحَْْراَءَ
كَِرْبَلََءَِخَرجََِعَلِيُِّبْنُِالُْْسَيْنِِبِِلنِ سْوَِ  ةِِوَِرَدَِرأَْسَِالُْْسَيْنِِعِإِلََ

‘And no stone in Bayt Al-Maqdis was raised from the surface of the ground except and fresh 
blood was seen, and the people sighted the sun upon the walls as being red, as if these had 
been dyed with a dye, up to the going out by Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws with the womenfolk 
and return of the (holy) head of Al-Husayn-asws to Karbala.’  

كَِأَنَِخََْسَةَِنُُُبٍِمِنِْنوُرٍِقَدِْأقَْ بَلَتِْ يبٍِشَيْخٌِوَِِوَِقاَلَِابْنُِنَماَِوَِرأََتِْسُكَيْنَةُِفِِمَنَامِهَاِوَِهِيَِبِدِمَشْقَ الْمَلََئِكَةُِمُُْدِقَةٌِبُِِمِْوَِمَعَهُمِْوَصِيفٌِِوَِعَلَىكُِلِ ِنَُِ
ِوَِقاَلَِيََِسُكَينَةُِإِنَِجَدَكِِيُسَلِ مُِعَلَِ  يْكِِفَ قُلْتُِوَِعَلَىِرَسُولِِاللَِِّالسَلََمُِيََِرَسُولُِمَنِْأنَْتَِيَمْشِيِفَمَضَىِالنُّجُبُِوَِأقَْ بَلَِالْوَصِيفُِإِلَيَِوَِقَ رُبَِمِنِِ 

And Ibn Nama said, ‘And Seekeyna-asws saw in her-asws dream while she-asws was at Damascus, 
as if five rides of light had come and upon each of the rides was a Sheikh, and the Angels were 
all around them, and with them was a servant walking. The rides continued and the servant 
came to me-asws and was close to me-asws, and said, ‘O Seekeyna-asws! Your-asws grandfather-saww 
greets unto you-asws.’ I-asws said: ‘And upon Rasool-Allah be the greetings. O messenger! Who 
are you?’ 

لُِآدَمُِصَفْوَةُِاللَِِّوَِالثاَنِّإِبْ راَهِيمُِخَلِيلُِاللَِِّوَِالثاَلِثُِمُوسَىِِقاَلَِوَصِيفٌِمِنِْوَصَائِفِِالْْنََةِِفَ قُلْتُِمَنِْهَؤُلََّءِِالْمَشِيخَةُِالَذِينَِجَاءُواِعَلَىِالنُّجُبِِقاَلَِالَِْوَِ
 اللَِِِّكَلِيمُِاللَِِّوَِالراَبِعُِعِيسَىِرُوحُِ

‘He said, ‘A servant from the servants of Paradise.’ I-asws said: ‘Who are these elders, the ones 
who came upon the rides?’ He said, ‘The first of them is Adam-as, elite of Allah-azwj, and the 
second is Ibrahim-saww, Friend of Allah-azwj, and the third is Musa-as, speaker with Allah-azwj, and 
the fourth is Isa-as, spirit of Allah-azwj.’  

 ِوَِأيَْنَِهُمِْقاَصِدُونَِقاَلَِإِلََِأبَيِكِِالُْْسَيْنِِفَ قُلْتُِمَنِْهَذَاِالْقَابِضُِعَلَىِلِْيَْتِهِِيَسْقُطُِمَرةًَِوَِيَ قُومُِأُخْرَىِفَ قَالَِجَدُّكِِرَسُولُِاللَِِّصِفَ قُلْتُِ

 
44 Bihar Al-Anwaar – V 45, The book of History – Al-Hassan-asws, Ch 49 H 16 / 9 
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‘I-asws said: ‘Who is this one holding his beard, falling at times, and standing at times?’ He said, 
‘Your-asws grandfather-saww Rasool-Allah-saww.’ I-asws said: ‘And where are they-as heading to?’ He 
said, ‘To your-asws father-asws Al-Husayn-asws.’  

كَِذَلِكَِإِذِْأقَْ بَِ كُِلِ ِهَوْدَجٍِامْرأَةٌَِفَ قُلْتُِمَنِْهَذِهِِالنِ سْوَةُِفأَقَْ بَلْتُِأَسْعَىِفِِطلََبِهِِلُِِعَر فَِهُِمَاِصَنَعَِبنَِاِالظاَلِمُونَِبَ عْدَهُِفَ بَيْنَمَاِأنَََ لَتِْخََْسَةُِهَوَادِجَِمِنِْنوُرٍِفِ
 الْمُقْبِلََتُِ

‘I-asws turned back striving in searching for him-saww to let him-saww know what the oppressors 
had done with us-asws after him-saww. While I-asws was like that when the five carriages of light 
came, in each carriage was a woman. I-asws said: ‘Who are these women coming over?’  

أمُُِّالْبَشَرِِالثاَنيَِةُِآسِيَةُِبنِْتُِمُزاَحِمٍِوَِالثاَلثِةَُِمَرْيَمُِابْ نَةُِعِمْراَنَِوَِ  الراَبِعَةُِخَدِيَُةُِبنِْتُِخُوَيلِْدٍِقاَلَِالُِْولََِحَوَاءُِ

‘He said, ‘The first is Hawwa-as, mother of the human beings, the second is Aasiya Bint 
Muzahim-as, and the third is Maryam Bint Imran-as, and the fourth is Khadeeja-asws Bint 
Khuwaylid-asws.’  

 أمُُِّأبَيِكِِ ةُِبنِْتُِمَُُمَدٍِفَ قُلْتُِمَنِِالْْاَمِسَةُِالْوَاضِعَةُِيَدَهَاِعَلَىِرأَْسِهَاِتَسْقُطُِمَرةًَِوَِتَ قُومُِأُخْرَىِفَ قَالَِجَدَتُكِِفاَطِمَِ

‘I-asws said: ‘Who is the fifth having placed her-asws hand upon her-asws head, falling at times and 
standing at times?’ He said, ‘Your-asws grandmother-asws (Syeda) Fatima-asws Bint Muhammad-

asws, mother-asws of your-asws father-asws.’  

بَدَدُواِوَِاللَِِّشََلَْنَاِيََِأمَُتَاهِْاسْتَبَاحُواِِِِتَاهِْجَحَدُواِوَِاللَِِّحَقَنَاِيََِأمَُتَاهِْفَ قُلْتُِوَِاللَِِّلَُِخْبِْنَََّاَِمَاِصُنِعَِبنَِاِفَ لَحِقْتُهَاِوَِوَقَ فْتُِبَيْنَِيَدَيْ هَاِأبَْكِيِوَِأقَُولُِيََِأمَُِ
 وَِاللَِِّحَريمنََاِيََِأمَُتَاهِْقَ تَلُواِوَِاللَِِّالُْْسَيْنَِأبََِنََِ

‘I-asws said: ‘By Allah-azwj! I-asws shall inform her-asws of what has happened with us-asws, and I-asws 
stood in front of her-asws crying, and I-asws said: ‘O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they rejected our-

asws rights! O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they wasted our-asws covering! O mother-asws! By Allah-

azwj, they legalised our-asws sanctity! O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they killed our-asws father-asws 
Al-Husayn-asws!’ 

كَِبِدِيِوَِقَطعَْتِِنيَِاطَِقَ لْبِِهَذَاِقَمِيصُِأبَيِكِِالُْْسَيْنِِ كُِفِ يِصَوْتَكِِيََِسُكَيْنَةُِفَ قَدِْأَحْرَقْتِ  ِمَعِيِلََِّيُ فَارقُِنِِِحَتََِّألَْقَىِالَلَِّبِهِِفَ قَالَتْ

‘She-asws said: ‘Restrain you-asws voice, O Seekeyna-asws, for you-asws have incinerated my-asws 
liver and cut the veins of my-asws heart! This is the shirt of your-asws father-asws with me-asws. I-

asws will not separate from it until I-asws meet Allah-azwj with it.’  

كِِتْمَانَِذَلِكَِالْمَنَامِِوَِحَدَثْتُِبِهِِ  أهَْلِيِفَشَاعَِبَيْنَِالناَسِِثُمَِانْ تَبَهْتُِوَِأرََدْتُ

‘Then I-asws suddenly woke up and wanted to conceal that dream, and I-asws narrated to my-asws 
family with it, and it spread between the people.’’  

كَِانَِالْيَوْمُِ اكِبَةًِفِِهَوْدَجٍِوَِيَدُهَاِالراَبِعُِمِنِْمُقَامِنَاِرأَيَْتُِفِِالْمَنَامِِوَِذكََرْتُِمَنَاماًِطَوِيلًَِتَ قُولُِفِِآخِرهِِِوَِرأَيَْتُِامْرأَةًَِرَِوَِقاَلَِالسَيِ دُِوَِقاَلَتِْسُكَيْنَةُِفَ لَمَا
عَلَىِرأَْسِهَاِفَسَألَْتُِعَنْهَاِفَقِيلَِليِهَذِهِِفاَطِمَةُِبنِْتُِمَُُمَدٍِأمُُِّ  أبَيِكِِمَوْضُوعَةٌِ
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And the Seyyid said, ‘And Seekeyna-asws said, ‘When it was the fourth day from our-asws stay, I-

asws saw in the dream’ – and she-asws mentioned a lengthy dream, saying at the end of it: ‘And 
I-asws saw a woman riding in a carriage and her-asws hand was placed upon her-asws head. I-asws 
asked about her-asws. It was said, ‘She-asws is (Syeda) Fatima-asws Bint Muhammad-asws, mother-

asws of your-asws father-asws.’  

وَِاللَِِّحَقَنَاِيََِِِفَسَعَيْتُِمُبَادِرَةًِنَحْوَهَاِحَتََِّلَْقِْتُِبُِاَِفَ وَقَ فْتُِبَيْنَِيَدَيْ هَاِأبَْكِيِوَِأقَُولُِيََِأمَُتَاهِْجَحَدُوافَ قُلْتُِوَِاللَِِّلَِنَْطلَِقَنَِإلِيَْهَاِوَِلَُِخْبِْنَََّاَِبماَِصُنِعَِبنَِاِ
 قَ تَلُواِوَِاللَِِّالُْْسَيْنَِأبََِنََِِأمَُتَاهِْبَدَدُواِوَِاللَِِّشََلَْنَاِيََِأمَُتَاهِْاسْتَبَاحُواِوَِاللَِِّحَريمنََاِيََِأمَُتَاهِْ

‘I-asws said: ‘By Allah-azwj! I-asws shall go to her-asws and inform her-asws with what had happened 
with us-asws. So, I-asws strived rushing towards her-asws until I-asws caught up with her-asws. I-asws 
stood in front of her-asws crying and I-asws said: ‘O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they have rejected 
our-asws rights! O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they wasted our-asws covering! O mother-asws! By 
Allah-azwj, they legalised our-asws sanctity! O mother-asws! By Allah-azwj, they killed our-asws father-

asws Al-Husayn-asws!’ 

 ِِ-لََِّيُ فَارقُِنِِِحَتََِّألَْقَىِاللََِِّ-فَ قَالَتِْليكُِفِ يِصَوْتَكِِيََِسُكَيْنَةُِفَ قَدِْقَطعَْتِِنيَِاطَِقَ لْبِِهَذَاِقَمِيصُِأبَيِكِِالُْْسَيْنِِع

‘She-asws said to me-asws: ‘Restrain your-asws voice, O Seekeyna-asws, for you-asws have cut the 
veins of my-asws heart! This is the shirt of your-asws father-asws. It will not separate from me-asws 
until I-asws meet Allah-azwj!’’45 

Appendix III: Supplication of 4th Imam-asws for Safety - from Yazeed’s Army 
Besieging Medina 

هِِعَنِْدَاوُدَِبْنِِالْقَاسِمِِعَنِِالُْْسَيْنِِبْنِِزَيْدٍِعَنِِْ كَِانَِيَ قُولُِالْرشادِأبَوُِمَُُمَدٍِالَْْسَنُِبْنُِمَُُمَدٍِعَنِْجَدِ  ِبْنِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِأنَهَُ ِعَنِْأبَيِهِِعَلِيِ  هِِعُمَرَِبْنِِعَلِيٍ  ِِعَمِ 
جَابةَُِفِكُِلِ ِوَقْتٍِ  لَمِْأرََِمِثْلَِالتَقَدُّمِِفِِالدُّعَاءِِفإَِنَِالْعَبْدَِليَْسَِتََْضُرهُُِالِْْ

(The book) ‘Al Irshad’ – Abu Muhammad Al-Hassan Bin Muhammad, from his grandfather, from Dawood Bin Al 

Qasim, from Al-Husayn Bin Zayd, From his uncle Umar son of Ali who from: ‘His father Ali-asws Bin Al-
Husayn-asws having had said: ‘I-asws did not see like the remedy in the supplication, for the servant is not 

presented with the fulfilment during all times.’  

كَِانَِمِاَِحُفِظَِعَنْهُِعِمِنَِالدُّعَاءِِحِيَنِبَ لَغَهُِتَ وَجُّهُِمُسْرِفِِبْنِِعُقْبَةَِإِلََِالْمَدِينَةِِ كَِمِْمِنِِِِْ-وَ كَِمِْمِنِْنعِْمَةٍِأنَْ عَمْتَِبُِاَِعَلَيَِقَلَِلَكَِعِنْدَهَاِشُكْريِِوَ رَبِ 
 هَاِصَبِْْيبلَِيَةٍِابْ تَلَيْتَنِِِبُِاَِقَلَِلَكَِعِنْدَِ

And it was from what is preserved from him-asws, from the supplication when it reached 
him-asws that Musrif Bin Uqba was heading towards Al-Medina: ‘Lord-azwj! How many bounties 
You-azwj have Favoured with upon me-asws. My-asws thanking is little compared to it. And how 
many afflictions You-azwj had Tried me-asws with, my-asws patience was little during it!  

مَعْرُوفِِالَذِيِلََِّيَ نْقَطِعُِأبََداًِوَِيََِذَاِالنَعْمَاءِِالَتِيِلََِّتَُْصَىِعَدَداًِصَلِ ِِفَ يَاِمَنِْقَلَِعِنْدَِنعِْمَتِهِِشُكْريِِفَ لَمِْيَُْرمِْنِِِوَِقَلَِعِنْدَِبَلََئهِِِصَبِْْيِفَ لَمِْيَِْذُلْنِِِيََِذَاِالِْ
ِأدَْرأَُِبِكَِفِِنَحْرهِِِوَِأَسْتَعِيذُِبِكَِمِنِْشَر هِِِعَلَىِمَُُمَدٍِوَِآلِِمَُُمَدٍِ ِشَرهَُِفَإِنّ ِ  ِوَِادْفَعِْعَنِِ 
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O One-azwj compared to His-azwj bounties my-asws gratefulness is little, and He-azwj did not 
Deprive me-asws! And little was my-asws patience during His-azwj Trial, and He-azwj did not 
abandon me-asws! O One-azwj with the Kindness which does not terminate, ever! And O One-azwj 
with the Favours the numbers of which cannot be counted! Send Salawaat upon Muhammad-

saww and Progeny-asws of Muhammad-saww and Repel his evil away from me-asws. I-asws shelter 
with You-azwj regarding his slaughtering, and I-asws seek Refuge with You-azwj from his evil!’ 

ِبْنِِالُْْسَيْنِِعِفَسَلِمَِمِنْهُِوَِ كَِانَِيُ قَالُِلََِّيرُيِدُِغَيْرَِعَلِيِ   ِأَكْرَمَهُِوَِحَبَاهُِوَِوَصَلَهُِفَ قَدِمَِمُسْرِفُِبْنُِعُقْبَةَِالْمَدِينَةَِوَ

Musrif Bin Uqba arrived at Al-Medina, and it was said that he did not intend anyone other 
than Imam Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws. He-asws was safe from him, and he honoured him-asws, and 
gifted him-asws, and helped him-asws (financially).  

ِبْنِِالُِْْ سَيْنِِعِفأََتَاهُِفَ لَمَاِصَارَِإلِيَْهِِقَ ربَهَُِوَِأَكْرَمَهُِوَِقاَلَِلَهُِأوَْصَانِّأمَِيُرِوَِجَاءَِالَْْدِيثُِمِنِْغَيْرِِوَجْهٍِأَنَِمُسْرِفَِبْنَِعُقْبَةَِلَمَاِقَدِمَِالْمَدِينَةَِأرَْسَلَِإِلََِعَلِيِ 
 تََيِْيزكَِِمِنِْغَيْرِكَِالْمُؤْمِنِيَنِبِبِْ كَِوَِ

And the Hadeeth has come from another direction that Musrif Bin Uqba, when he arrived at 
Al-Medina, sent a message to Imam Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws to go to him. When he-asws came 
to him, he drew him-asws near and honoured him-asws, and said to him-asws, ‘Commander of the 
faithful has advised me with being kind with you-asws and distinguish you-asws from others.’ 

ِأرََىِأَنِْقَدِْأفَْ زَِ كَِانَِبِِيَْدِينَاِمَاِنَ قْوَىِبِهِِعَلَىِفَجَزاَهُِخَيْراًِثُمَِقاَلَِأَسْرجُِواِلَهُِبَ غْلَتِيِوَِقاَلَِلَهُِانْصَرِفِْإِلََِأهَْلِكَِفإَِنّ ِ عْنَاهُمِْوَِأتَْ عَبْنَاكَِبمشَْيِكَِإلِيَْنَاِوَِلَوْ
 لْنَاكَِصِلَتِكَِبِقَدْرِِحَقِ كَِلَوَصَِ

He rewarded him goodly, then said, ‘Saddle my mule for him-asws!’ And he said to him-asws, 
‘Leave to go to your-asws family, for I view that we have alarmed them and fatigued you-asws by 
your-asws walking to us and had there been in our hands what we could have strengthened 
with our financial aid in accordance with your-asws right, we would have aided you-asws.’  

ِبْنُِالُْْسَيْنِِعِمَاِأعَْذَرَنِّلِلَْمِيِرِوَِركَِبَِفَ قَالَِمُسْرِفُِبْنُِعُقْبَةَِلِْلَُسَائهِِِهَِ ذَاِالَْْيْرُِالَذِيِلََِّشَرَِفِيهِِمَعَِمَوْضِعِهِِمِنِْرَسُولِِاللَِِّصِوَِمَكَانهِِِِفَ قَالَِلَهُِعَلِيُّ
ِ.مِنْهُِ

Imam Ali-asws Bin Al-Husayn-asws said to him: ‘What would excuse me-asws to the emir and the 
riding?’ Musrif Bin Uqba said to his gatherers, ‘This one is the good in which there is no evil in 
him-asws, along with his-asws place from Rasool-Allah-saww, and his-asws position from him-saww’.’46 

ِبيانِمسرفِهوِمسلمِبنِعقبةِالذيِبعثهِيزيدِلعنهِاللهِلوقعةِالْرةِفسميِبعدهاِمسرفاِلْسرافهِفِِإهراقِالدماءِ.

Explanation: ‘Musrif, he is Muslim Bin Uqba whom Yazeed-la, may Allah-azwj Curse him-la had 
sent at the event of Al-Hira, so he was named after it as ‘Musrif’ (extravagant), due to his 
extravagance in spilling the blood.’  
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